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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after

due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there

will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever anising from or in

reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Jia Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company’) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would

make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2T ER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HITES

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (Chairperson) Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry
BMERL (FE) BEEXL

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BAFITES

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony
Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM%: 4 REBTE WEE Keng Hiong Tony %t 4
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES (FOR THE PURPOSES OF
THE GEM LISTING RULES)
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry
Ms. Foo Man Yee, Carina (ACG, HKACG (PE))
(appointed on 4 February 2022)
Mr. YEUNG Tsz Kit Alban (FCG, HKFCG & FCPA Australia)
(resigned on 4 February 2022)

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Foo Man Yee, Carina (ACG, HKACG (FE))
(appointed on 4 February 2022)

Mr. YEUNG Tsz Kit Alban (FCG, HKFCG & FCPA Australia)
(resigned on 4 February 2022)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric (Chairperson)
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM (Chairperson)
Ms. WONG Pui Yain
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (Chairperson)
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM

LEGAL COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry (Chairperson)
Ms. WONG Pui Yain
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric
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AUDITOR

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

25th Floor, Wing On Centre
I'1'l Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Innovax Capital Limited

(appointment was terminated on 31 March 2021)
Room 2002, 20/F

Chinachem Century Tower

178 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG LAW
CHARLTONS

| 2th floor, Dominion Centre
43-59 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER
Hang Seng Bank Limited

19/F

83 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park

P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY'I-1108

Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Office No.5 on 22nd Floor, Universal Trade Centre
No.3 Arbuthnot Road
Central

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY'I-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

WWW.jiagroup.co

GEM STOCK CODE
8519
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of Director (the “Board") of Jia Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021.

The COVID-19 situation remains the most serious concern for our business. Due
to the fifth wave of the COVID-19 outbreak in Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government tightened regulatory restrictions on social gatherings,

posing significant challenges to Hong Kong's catering industry.

Under the shadow of the global COVID-19 situation, this is undoubtedly a test for
operators and business development, especially in terms of their sustainable performance.
Yet, we believe that good management capabilities represent the core value of the Group

and reflect its corporate strength and brand value.

At the beginning of 2022, the Group's brands Duddell's, Louise, MONO and And 0
received the Michelin One-Star Award. Meanwhile, | was awarded the title of Restaurateur
of the Year by the Tatler Dining Awards 2022, an influential awards event in the global
catering industry. Estro received the annual Best Interior Design award, and MONO,
And O and Estro were included in the Tatler Dining 20 list. These represent a testament
to the excellent management capabilities of the Group's management and the great value
of its brands. We believe that when the situation in Hong Kong gradually improves, the

Group's high-quality services and unique brand advantages will surely drive further growth.

In the meantime, the Group is reviewing its tenancy agreements with landlords with an
aim to improve its cost structure in the future. In addition, the Group is reorganising its
business internally and increasing takeout options by adjusting the dishes and upgrading
the menu. It is expected that the dining mode will shift from primarily dine-ins in the
past to a mixture of dine-in and takeout in the future. As such, the Group will put more

emphasis on technology, efficiency and cost-effectiveness to adapt to the shift.
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
ITEHES

In the future, the Group will continue to explore investment opportunities related to
food technology that can generate synergy with its existing business and are in line with its
multi-brand development strategy, so as to build a larger business ecosystem and create

long-term value of shareholders and the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGE

Finally, I would like to express gratitude to the Board of Directors of Jia Group, all business
partners, employees, investors and customers for their unwavering support for the Group.
Despite the lingering headwinds for the global economy, premium catering services
remain a basic need of people. | am still very optimistic about the long-term prospects of
the Group. With the talent and strength of the management team, | am confident that the
Group will resume sustained growth after the threat of the COVID-19 situation is lifted.

Chairperson
WONG Pui Yain

Hong Kong, 28 April 2022
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
CUREHE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Year ended 3| December

RARE BZENA3IALEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
87 Fi5T
Revenue LN 221,344 173303
Loss before taxation BRI AIEE (19,295) (19,737)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FRBEREZERZAE (21,262) (19,100)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year RRAFEEANEIEEE
attributable to owners of the Company BEERZERAXEHE (19,476) (20,407)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES As at 31 December
BEREE R12B318
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
F5 FiET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRnBEE 97,114 99,986
Current assets RENEE 38912 38,070
Total assets BEEHAE 136,026 138,056
Equity and liabilities Bakak
Non-current liabilities FRBERE 38,999 30444
Current liabilities RBEE 77,275 84,074
Total liabilities BELE 116,274 114518
Total equity ERen 19,752 23,538
Net current liabilities REBEETE (38,363) (46,004)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a renowned catering group in Hong Kong with award-winning restaurants.
In addition to the flagship brand Duddell's, the Group continued to expand its brand
portfolio and serve a variety of cuisines. Currently, its brand portfolio consists of |1
brands, namely, Duddell's, Louise, MONO, And 0, Estro, Ramato (formerly known as
208 Duecento Otto"), 22 Ships, Between, Bibi & Baba, MakMak and Chachawan, which

provide customers with a variety of choices.

During the year under review, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, dine-in service was
still subject to certain restrictions, but the Group's business or operations were not
further disrupted in the second half of the year compared with the first half. Its business
performance, though yet to return to its normal level, has somewhat recovered.
Moreover, the Group implemented effective strategies to improve its brand portfolio and
sales, and continued to take proactive measures to enhance productivity and efficiency,
including integrating human resources, accelerating the pace of digitalisation and strictly

controlling costs to ensure profitability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

While always following a multi-brand and multi-concept strategy as always, the Group
continued to expand into more market segments. During the year under review, the
Group opened a premium ltalian restaurant called “Estro” and appointed Antimo Maria
Merone, former Executive Chef of 81/2 Otto e Mezzo BOMBANA" as the Executive
Chef of “Estro”. In the first month of its opening, Estro was well received in the market
and built an excellent brand reputation, laying a solid foundation for high revenue growth

in the future.

In addition to maintaining and improving its premium catering services, the Group's light
meal brand “Between” has successfully established a promising coffee culture for the
young. During the year under review, in addition to its Tai Kwun and Wan Chai shops,
"Between” continued to receive support and cooperation from big brands, and was
invited to open a limited-edition coffee shop in Pacific Place. With its fashionable and
quality brand image, “Between” has attracted more diverse consumers with different
spending power, and continuously expands the customer base of the Group to provide a

steady stream of driving force.

In recent years, e-commerce has been thriving, giving birth to new business models. During
the year under review, the Group invested more resources in its food delivery platform
“JIA Everywhere", continued to upgrade its information technology system, improved its
customer dining experience and strengthened the application of big data. In the future, the
Group will further expand its online sales business and customer loyalty program, so as to

further enrich its revenue model and optimise cost control.

Food technology investment is a bright spot in the future development of the catering
industry. During the year under review, the Group invested in Plantible Foods, a US-
based alternative protein start-up, and abillion, a vegetarian culture social platform, to help
explore potential opportunities in forward-looking and sustainable food technology. In
addition, the Group believes that its investment in Momos will bring SaaS (software as a
service) benefits to the Group, such as cost reduction, efficiency improvement, and better
operations and management, and improve the integration and continuity of its restaurant

business and brand management, thus creating greater synergy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's revenue from external
customers based on their nature for the year ended 31 December 2021 with the

comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2020:

EEENWmE DM

B35 18
L'ON

TR AEED BINEZE2021F 12831 B
HFEERZPHEEMNINRE R AR
MEE2020F R EIM L BB T

For the year ended 3| December

BZNA3NALEE

2021 2020
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
FidsE TER FET

Catering services EHR
~ Fine dining —RIREH | 138,174 92,881
— Mid-market dining —HIREHR 2 28210 24391
— Specialty coffee — FEam gk 3 15,571 2,193
— Casual dining — KB 4 39,389 53838
221,344 173303

Note |: Duddell's (Central), Louise, And O, Estro and Mono are classified as fine dining.

Note 2: Ramato (formerly known as “208 Duecento Otto”), 22 Ships and Old Bailey are classified

as mid-market dining.

Note 3: Between is classified as specialty coffee.

Note 4: Mak Mak, Duddell's (Airport) Chachawan, Commissary, Meen & Rice and Bibi & Baba are

classified as casual dining,

Note 5: The Group closed Commissary in April 2020, and opened Louise at the premises occupied
by Aberdeen Street Social in mid-June 2019. 22 Ships, Ham & Sherry, Old Bailey and
Behind Bars suspended their operations in March 2020 and April 2020, respectively, while
22 Ships was reopened in June 2020. And O, previously named “REN" was opened in July
2020. Meen & Rice was disposed in December 2020. Duddell's (Airport) was closed in
December 2020.

MizEl: #BEF|EE (FIR) » Louise * And 0 * Estro

KMono R fEAEIHERR

Ramato (BT #E [ 208 Duecento Otto]) ~ 22
Ships 2 Old Bailey H 4B A IHEEK

PiaE2:

MizE3: Between? X8 AMERUMGE o

Mak Mak ~ #ZHMEE (K5) -
Chachawan * Commissary * 583 8ER K Bibi
& Baba D B BIRFIER

MizE4:

FizES: ANEER 202054 BB Commissary *
Louise A 201956 A B {E Aberdeen Street
Social FTERE FTFIZ © 22 Ships * Ham &
Sherry * Old Bailey K Behind Bars% 51722020
F3AR2020F4AFEE - 22 Shipsi
202056 AEHFI% © And O (RITEREN )
202057 AFI% - WHMERN 20204 12
AHE - MEREE (K5) 720205 127
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$221.3 million (2020: HK$173.3 million), representing an increase of approximately
HK$48.0 million or 27.7% as compared with the corresponding period of last year which
was mainly due to an increase in fine dining catering services recorded an increase 48.8%
or HK$45.3 million which was a result of the relaxation of social distancing restrictions
relating to COVID-19 by the Hong Kong Government and “Estro” opened in September
2021 recording a revenue of approximately HK$9.2 million. Developing the specialty
coffee business in November 2020, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$15.6 million from such segment during the year. The Revenue of casual dining catering
services recorded a decrease of approximately HK$14.4 million or 26.8% was mainly due

to the closure of “Duddell's Airport” in December 2020.

Raw materials and consumables used

Raw materials and consumables used by the Group includes, but is not limited to,
vegetable, meat, seafood and frozen food etc. That is one of the major components of
the Group's operating expenses which amounted to approximately HK$62.0 million and
HK$46.5 million for each of the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively,
representing approximately 28.0% and 26.8% of the Group's total revenue for the
corresponding periods. Such increase was mainly due to the 1.8% increase in the use of
raw materials and consumables by “Duddell's Central” for the year ended 31 December
2021 as compared with of the corresponding period of last year and a higher cost margin

35.9% of “Estro” which opened in September 2021.

14 | JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED R &EBAERA T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Staff costs

Staff costs represented one of the major components of the Group's operating
expenses which primarily consisted of Directors’ emoluments, salaries and allowance,
retirement benefit scheme contributions and other benefits. The staff costs increased by
approximately HK$6.0 million from approximately HK$81.I million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately HK$87.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. Such increase was mainly due to the increase number of staff which was as result of
the relaxation of social distancing restrictions to COVID-19 by Hong Kong Government

and increase in the visiting customers.

Property rentals and related expenses

Apart from raw materials and consumables used and staff costs, property rentals also
represent one of the major components of the Group's operating expenses. Property
rentals and related expenses decrease approximately HK$2.| million from approximately
HK$10.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$8.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The decrease was mainly due to the closure of
“Duddell's Airport” in December 2020 which amounted to approximately HK$5.1 million
and increase of approximately HK$1.0 million and HK$0.8 million of “Between" and “Estro”

which opened in November 2020 and September 2021, respectively.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$19.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 representing
a decrease in loss of approximately HK$0.9 million as compared with a loss of

approximately HK$20.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The decrease in loss attributable to owners of the Company was primarily attributable
to the relaxation of social distancing restrictions relating to COVID-19 by the Hong Kong
Government which led to an increase in number of visiting customers and decrease in

property rentals and related expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group finances its operations primarily through cash generated from operating

activities and interest-bearing bank borrowing,

The Group recorded net current liabilities of approximately HK$38.4 million as at 3|
December 2021 (2020: net current liabilities HK$46.0 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's current ratio was approximately 0.5 (2020: 0.5)
and the Group's gearing ratio calculated based on the total debt (excluding trade nature
balances, tax balances and provision) at the end of the year divided by total equity at the
end of the year was approximately 403.9% (2020: 399.2%).

As at 31 December 2021, the maximum limit of the banking facilities available to the
Group amounted to HK$20.0 million and has been fully utilised. The bank borrowings
are subject to variable interest rate of the higher of 2.50% per annum over HIBOR or the
bank's cost of funds and 2.50% per annum below Prime Rate or the bank's cost of funds.
The weighted average interest rate is 2.8% per annum as at 31 December 2021 (2020:

3.51% per annum).

The capital structure of the Company comprised ordinary shares only. On 18 June 2021,
the Company issued 134,280,000 new shares through the placing of new shares with
proceeds amounting to HK$17.5 million, net of share issuing costs. As at 31 December
2021, the Company has I,161,190,000 ordinary shares in issue after cancelling 5,000,000
of the Shares Repurchased. Total equity attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$22.0 million as at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$25.0

million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Breach of Loan Agreements

Certain bank loan facilities of the Group are subject to certain covenants on financial
gearing and capital requirements as commonly required under lending arrangements
with financial institutions. The Directors became aware that the Group has technically
breached the loan covenant as the Group has failed to fulfill certain financial criteria in
which the calculation is based on the Group's financial information. The Group has been
communicating with the banks to resolve the breach of the aforesaid bank covenants
in order to maintain the existing banking loan facilities. As of the approval date of
these financial statements, the lenders have not made any demand for immediate loan

repayment.

The Board is of the opinion after taking into account that the existing bank balances and
cash, internally generated funds and available banking facilities, the Group has sufficient

working capital from the date of this report.

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group during the year ended 31

December 2021.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE RISKS

The Group operated mainly in Hong Kong with most of the Group's transactions settled
in Hong Kong dollars. As such, the Group did not have significant exposure to foreign

exchange risk during the year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's pledged bank deposits in the amount of HK$9.5
million was pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities (31 December 2020:
HK$9.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to floating-rate
bank borrowing, and fair value interest rate risk in relation to pledged bank deposits and
non-interest bearing amounts due from/to related companies, a controlling shareholder
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and amount due from an associate. The
Company is mainly exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to non-interest

bearing amounts due to subsidiaries.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of

HIBOR arising from the Group's bank borrowings.
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2021, the maximum exposure in relation to credit risk of the Group
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties arises from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Board considers
the credit risk of the Company is immaterial. The Group trades with a large number
of individual customers and trading terms are predominately on cash and credit card
settlement. In view of the Group's operations, the Group does not have significant credit

risk exposure to any single individual customer.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
companies, a controlling shareholder and an associate. The Board considers the

counterparties to be of good credit worthiness based on its past repayment history.

The credit risk on bank balances and pledged bank deposits of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are medium to large-sized Hong Kong listed banks. The Group
has concentration risk on its liquid funds as the pledged bank deposits and bank balances

are placed with two banks in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalent deemed adequate by the management of the Group to finance the

Group's operations and mitigate the effects of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had contracted but not provided for capital
commitment of HK$0.9 million in respect of property, plant and equipment (31
December 2020: HK$ 1.4 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities (31
December 2020: nil)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Saved as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, during the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant investments, material

acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF NEW SHARES
UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

Placing completed on 24 September 2020 (the “Placing I”)

Reference is made to the announcements issued by the Company on 7 September
2020 and 24 September 2020 in relation to the placing of new shares under the general

mandate.

On 7 September 2020, the Group and a placing agent entered into a placing agreement
pursuant to which the Group appointed the placing agent to procure altogether not less
than six placees (who and whose ultimate beneficial owner(s) are independent of and
not connected with the Company and any of its connected persons within the meaning
of the GEM Listing Rules) for placing up to aggregate of 171,910,000 placing shares at a
placing price of HK$0.08 per placing share. The closing price for the Company's shares on
7 September 2020 was HK$0.096 per share.

The Placing | was completed on 24 September 2020 with gross and net proceeds of
approximately HK$13.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.08 per placing share)
and HK$13.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.077 per placing share) as set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 7 September 2020 and 24 September 2020. The
Company intended to use the proceeds for (i) developing the cloud kitchen business of
the Group; (i) upgrading the sales channels of the Group, including “JIA Everywhere”, the
online/offline delivery platform of the Group; (iii) investing in potential PRC or overseas
food and beverage related investment opportunities; (iv) developing new catering outlets

of the Group and for brand management; and (v) loan repayment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

Planned use of
proceeds as

described in the

Actual use of

Unused total

announcement Approximate net proceeds net proceeds
dated percentage of up to up to
Use of net proceeds from the 7 September total net 31 December 31 December
Placing | 2020 proceeds 2021 2021
B %2020
9A7H EZ0215 EZ2021 %
HAEMRE  (ERERE 12H318 12A31 8
Frig Rt & FHE NAEREFRE B 1 R B A
REIMESHEFERAR Jickes BHEDH BERAE BREHRFE
HKS million % HKS$ million HK$ million
BEAT % BEAT BEBT
Developing the cloud kitchen business %éﬁiéﬁr“ﬁ%%&ﬁ%ﬁ
and upgrading the sales channels T 45 34.1% 1.7 28
Investing in potential PRC or overseas
food and beverage related BB T B S S A
investment opportunities is=eiil fiacy; 25 18.9% 25 -
Developing new catering outlets BB IS 1.2 9.1% 1.0 02
Loan repayment ERER 50 37.9% 50 -
Total st 132 100.0% 10.2 30
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

Placing completed on 18 June 2021 (the “Placing II”)

Reference is made to the announcements issued by the Company on 25 May 2021 and

18 June 2021 in relation to the placing of new shares under the general mandate.

On 25 May 2021, the Group and a placing agent entered into a placing agreement
pursuant to which the Group appointed the placing agent to procure altogether not less
than six placees (who and whose ultimate beneficial owner(s) are independent of and not
connected with the Company and any of its connected persons within the meaning of the
GEM Listing Rules) for placing up to aggregate of 134,280,000 placing shares at a placing
price of HK$0.135 per placing share. The closing price for the Company's shares on 25
May 2021 was HK$0.149 per share.

The Placing Il was completed on |8 June 2021 with gross and net proceeds of
approximately HK$18.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.135 per placing
share) and HK$17.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.1301 per placing share)
as set out in the Company’s announcements dated 25 May 2021 and 18 June 2021. The
Company intended to use the proceeds for (i) expanding the specialty coffee business;
(i) developing casual dining business; and (iii) investing in PRC and overseas food tech

investment opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

Planned use of

proceeds as Actual use of Unused total

described in the Approximate net proceeds net proceeds

announcement percentage of up to up to

Use of net proceeds from the dated total net 31 December 31 December

Placing Il 25 May 2021 proceeds 2021 2021
AER2021 5

5A25A EF0215 EZ2021 %
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HK$ million % HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT % BEAT BEBT

Expanding the specialty coffee business AR MIYEARTS 9.0 514% 35 55

Developing casual dining business; ERARERER 53 30.3% 4.5 08

Investing in PRC and overseas food ~ RERF B LGN
tech investment opportunities YRR E S 32 18.3% 0.6 26
Total st 17.5 100.0% 8.6 89

The Company intends to continue to apply the proceeds from the Placing | and Placing I RATREEE X TN ERRE &
in a manner consistent with that mentioned above and it is expected that these proceeds FREIpT1S 3IE - TBEZ S PTG SRR F 2022
will be fully utilized by December 2022. The Directors will continue to evaluate the 12 ARIZRHEA - EFKRERMEHE

Group's operations and financial performance when applying the proceeds. RHEET A S B e E RITBRR -
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREHEEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (“Ms. Wong”), aged 43, was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on 21 August 2015, and is the founder and a controlling shareholder. She
is the Group's chairperson, chief executive officer, executive Director, the chairperson
of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee and legal
compliance committee. She is currently responsible for overall strategic planning and
management of the Group's business development and operations and is also a director

of each of the members of the Group.

Bom in Singapore and educated in The University of Western Australia with a Bachelor's
Degree in Economics, Ms Wong is an entrepreneur and restaurateur with 2| years of
experience. She was awarded "Asia’s Best Young Entrepreneurs” by Businessweek 2008
and "Rising Star Award — Women in Asia” by Financial Times/RBS Coutt's 2009. In 2013
she was named one of the 10 “Women of our Time" by South China Morning Post,
“Restaurateur of the Year" by Hong Kong Tatler in 2016 and “Young Entrepreneur of the
Year" by Asia Corporate Excellence & Sustainability 2017.

Ms. Wong is an executive member to the Chamber Women Executives Club (WEC) and
a primary member of the YPO Hong Kong Chapter Limited. She was previously a non-
executive Director of Gameone Holdings Limited (listed on GEM, stock code: 8282) and
resigned on 6 January 2022.

Ms. Wong has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 23 January 2021, which may be terminated by not less than one
month's notice in writing served by either party on the other. Ms. Wong is entitled to
receive a salary of HK$864,000 per annum as determined by the Board with reference
to her experience, job responsibility and the prevailing market conditions and will be
reviewed annually by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company,
together with any discretionary bonus as may be decided by the Board with reference to

her performance and the operating results of the Group.

Ms. Wong is the sole director and sole shareholder of Giant Mind International Limited,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, as disclosed in the “Disclosure of Directors'

Interests” section of the Report of the Board of Directors.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry (“Ms. Wan”), aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 21 August 2015, and is the senior operations director and
the chairperson of the legal compliance committee. Ms. Wan is responsible for formulation
of corporate development strategies, execution of daily management and administration

of business and operations, and regulatory compliance.

Ms. Wan obtained a higher diploma in hotel and catering management from the Hong
Kong Technical College in July 1996. Ms. Wan has approximately 20 years of experience
in the food and beverage industry. From November 1996 to April 201 1, Ms. Wan worked
at Gaia Group. She served Va Bene Ristorante from November 1996 to February 2001.
Ms. Wan worked as an assistant manager of Gaia Ristorante from March 2001 to March
2008. Her last position was operations manager of Gaia Group. During her office in
Gaia Group, Ms. Wan was primarily responsible for purchasing, staff hiring, manager and
staff training, menu planning and the daily operations of eight restaurants in Hong Kong
and two restaurants in Shanghai, the PRC. Ms. Wan was also awarded “Most Influential
Woman in Hospitality 2018 — Hong Kong" by APAC Insider in 2018.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEREERE

Ms. Wan has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 8 February 2021, which may be terminated by not less than
one month'’s notice in writing served by either party on the other. Ms. Wan is entitled
to receive a salary of HK$816,000 per annum which was determined by the Board with
reference to her experience, job responsibility and the general market conditions and will
be reviewed annually by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company,
together with any discretionary bonus as may be decided by the Board with reference to

her performance and the operating results of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM (“Mr. Chanmugam”), aged 45, was appointed as

an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 23 January 2018, and is the
chairperson of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit committee and
the nomination committee. He is responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to the Board, the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the

nomination committee.

Mr. Chanmugam joined Deutsche Bank AG in Hong Kong in July 2000 and worked for
Deutsche Bank AG in Singapore as vice president from May 2002 to September 2005. Mr.
Chanmugam served as a vice president (fixed income, currency & commodities division)
based in Tokyo at Goldman Sachs (Asia) LL.C. from October 2005 to September 2007.
From October 2007 to May 2013, he relocated to Hong Kong and his last position
at Deutsche Bank AG was managing director (fixed income, currency & commodities
division). In August 2014, Mr. Chanmugam established Elezeno Capital Limited and
served as its director. In July 2000, Mr. Chanmugam obtained his bachelor's degree in
mathematics and economics from the London School of Economics and Political Science

in the United Kingdom.

Save as disclosed above, to the best of the knowledge of the Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, Mr. Chanmugam has not been a director in any public company
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas over
the past three years and does not have any other position with the Company and other

members of the Group or other major appointments and professional qualifications.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chanmugam has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 23 January 2021, which may be terminated by not less
than one month's notice in writing served by either party on the other. Mr. Chanmugam
is entitled to receive a director’s remuneration of HK$150,000 per annum which was
determined by the Board with reference to the prevailing market conditions and his

responsibility in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, to the best of the knowledge of the Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, Mr. Chanmugam does not have any other relationships with any
Directors, senior management, or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company,

nor any interest in the shares within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric (“Mr. Leung”), aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 23 January 2018, and is the chairperson of the
audit committee and a member of the nomination committee and the legal compliance
committee. He is responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board, the audit committee, the legal compliance committee and the nomination

committee.

Mr. Leung graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in May 1986 with a
first class honour in Bachelor of Business Administration. He has been a member of the
HKICPA (formerly known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) since 1989 and a CFA
charterholder since 2008. Mr. Leung has more than 2| years of senior management
experience in financial markets. Mr. Leung is currently the vice chairman and chief
executive officer of Venture Smart Financial Group. Mr. Leung had been the managing
director of Crosby Securities Limited and SAIL Advisors Limited respectively, a director of
Deutsche Bank, the head of finance of NatWest Securities Asia Limited and the regional
financial controller of Lehman Brothers Asia Holdings Limited. Mr. Leung was an executive
director of AID Life Science Holdings Limited (formerty known as Crosby Capital Limited),
a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8088) from October 2010
to September 2013.
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EEREREEREERE

Save as disclosed above, to the best of the knowledge of the Directors having made
all reasonable enquiries, Mr. Leung has not been a director in any public company the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas over
the past three years and does not have any other position with the Company and other

members of the Group or other major appointments and professional qualifications.

Mr. Leung has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 23 January 2021, which may be terminated by not less than one
month's notice in writing served by either party on the other. Mr. Leung is entitled to
receive a director’s remuneration of HK$150,000 per annum which was determined by
the Board with reference to the prevailing market conditions and his responsibility in the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, to the best of the knowledge of the Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, Mr. Leung does not have any other relationships with any Directors,
senior management, or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor any
interest in the shares within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony (“Mr. Wee”), aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 23 January 2018, and is member of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee. He is responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to the Board, the audit committee and the remuneration

committee.

Mr. Wee has more than |2 years of experience in the finance industry. He has been with
UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited since December 2003 and is currently an associate
director of UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited. He has been licensed to engage in Type
I (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO™) since December 2003. Mr. Wee
was awarded a bachelor of arts degree in economics from Pepperdine University in the
United States in April 1995.

Save as disclosed above, to the best of the knowledge of the Directors having made
all reasonable enquiries, Mr. Wee has not been a director in any public company the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas over
the past three years and does not have any other position with the Company and other

members of the Group or other major appointments and professional qualifications.
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Mr. Wee has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 23 January 2021, which may be terminated by not less than one
month'’s notice in writing served by either party on the other. Mr. Wee is entitled to
receive a director’s remuneration of HK$150,000 per annum which was determined by
the Board with reference to the prevailing market conditions and his responsibility in the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, to the best of the knowledge of the Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, Mr. Wee does not have any other relationships with any Directors,
senior management, or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor any

interest in the shares within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ms. TSANG Yin Mei, aged 60, is the Group's administrative manager and member

of the legal compliance committee. She is responsible for the office management and
administration of the Group. She has over 32 years of experience in secretarial work,
including secretarial support in trade/logistics firms. She worked for Citizen Watches (HK))
Ltd, Update Electronics, Reliance Agency Ltd, Capital Asia Trading Co Ltd and Orbotech
Pacific Ltd. as a clerk, secretary and executive assistant, respectively, between June 1982
and September 2001. Further, she also worked for PC Asia Limited as an administrative

Manager.

She obtained a diploma in business secretarial studies from the Hong Kong Young
Women'’s Christian Association Professional & Business Youth Department in May 1982,
and passed the Office Practice and Secretarial Practice courses offered by the Hong Kong
Baptist College Division of Continuing Education with distinction in April 1986 and with
credit in August 1986, respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's annual

report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

INTRODUCTION

The Group is committed to establishing and ensuring high standards of corporate
governance and adopting sound corporate governance practices. The Company's
corporate governance practices are based on the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. The Directors strongly believe that reasonable and sound corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and

enhancing shareholders’ interests.

The Directors consider that during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this report, except for the deviation from code provision A2.1 of the CG Code,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code. Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairperson and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Ms. Wong Pui Yain is the chairperson and the chief executive officer of the Company.
As Ms. Wong Pui Yain manages the Group's business development and operations on a
day-to-day basis and the Group's business is rapidly expanding, the Board believes that
with Ms. Wong Pui Yain's extensive experience in and knowledge of the business of the
Group, vesting the roles of both chairperson and chief executive officer in Ms. Wong Pui
Yain is beneficial to the business prospects, management and operations of the Group as
it will (i) strengthen her leadership in the Group; and (ii) allow for efficient and effective
planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies. Therefore, the Directors
consider that the deviation from provision A2.l of the CG Code is appropriate in such

circumstances.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the consolidated financial
statements which give true and fair view of the Group. The Directors are aware of the
Group's net current liabilities of HK$38.4 million for the year then ended and these
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt

on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

Further discussion on this issue has been set out in the note 3(b) to the consolidated

financial statements in this report.

A statement by the Independent Auditor about its reporting and its responsibilities is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 100 to 108 of this Annual Report.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include the formulation of the Group's overall
strategies, the setting of management targets and the supervision of management
performance. The management is delegated with the authority and the responsibility by
the Board for the management and administration of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees of the Company.

Further details of the Board committees are set out below in this report.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting the success of the
Company by providing direction and supervision of the Company's business and affairs,
and the ultimate responsibility for day-to-day management of the Company is delegated
to the management. To this end, periodic financial and operational information are
provided to the Board for assessing the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries.
For significant matters that are specifically delegated by the Board, the management
must report back to and obtain prior approval from the Board before making decisions
or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company. The management is
responsible for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group and for
providing the Board with updates in a timely manner, including giving an assessment of the

Company's performance and position to enable the Board to discharge its duties.
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The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, performing the corporate governance

duties as set out in the code provision D.3.| of the CG Code, which include:

developing and reviewing the Group's policies and practices on corporate

governance and making recommendations;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

the Directors and senior management;

reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to the Directors and employees; and

reviewing the Group's compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in the

corporate governance report.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As of the date of this report, the Board is comprised of five Directors, including two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, and the Directors'

details during the year and up to the date of this report are set out below.

Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (chairman and chief executive officer)
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony

All Directors have appropriate professional qualifications and/or substantive experience
and industry knowledge. The Board composition as a whole reflects an appropriate
balance of skills and experience. The composition of the Board satisfies the requirements
of Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules. There are three independent non-
executive Directors and at least one of them has the requisite accounting professional
qualification. With more than one-third of the members of the Board being independent
non-executive Directors, the Board has a strong independence element in terms of its

composition.

The participation of independent non-executive Directors in the Board brings a diverse
range of expertise, skills and independent judgment on issues relating to the Group's
strategies, performance, conflicts of interests and management process to ensure that the

interests of all shareholders of the Company are duly considered.
The details of Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Board of

Directors and Senior Management” on pages 24 to 29 of this report. There are no family

or other material relationships among members of the Board.
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CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Pui Yain was appointed as a Director on 21 August 2015 and was re-
designated as an executive Director, the chief executive officer and the chairperson of the
Board on 23 January 2018. Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry was appointed as a Director on 21

August 2015 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 23 January 2018,

The chairperson of the Board provides leadership to the Board and is also responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practice and is responsible for the overall corporate management of the business
development strategies of the Group. The executive Directors are responsible for the
implementation of the business strategies, policies and objectives set out by the Board and
are accountable to the Board for the overall operations of the Group. These functions

and responsibilities are currently being shared by the management team.

According to paragraph A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairperson and the chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. During
the year, Ms. Wong Pui Yain, the chairperson of the Board, was responsible for overseeing
the overall financial matters of the Group. The day-to-day operations of the Group are
delegated to another executive Director, Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry, and the management

of the Group is responsible for different aspects of the business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam, Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong

Tony were appointed as the independent non-executive Directors on 23 January 2018.

With their professional knowledge and experience, the independent non-executive
Directors serve an important function of advising the management of the Group on
strategy development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards in financial
and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole. They also
participate in the Company's various committees including the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the legal compliance

committee (the “Legal Compliance Committee”).
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and calibre for their
views to carry weight. The functions of independent non-executive Directors include:

. bringing an independent view and judgment at Board meetings;

. taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

. serving on Board committees if invited; and

. scrutinising the Company's performance and monitoring performance reporting.

The independent non-executive Directors have made a positive contribution to the
development of the Company's strategies and policies through independent, constructive
and informed comments. They benefit the Board and the Board committees by their skills,
expertise, varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and active

participation in the meetings of the Board and the Board committees.

In addition to the regular Board meetings, the Chairman met with the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of other Directors during the year ended 31

December 2021.
The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive Directors a

written confirmation of his or her independence in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM

Listing Rules, and therefore, considers each of them to be independent.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with the requirement as

set out in the CG Code, which is summarised below.

The Board diversity policy of the Company specifies that in designing the composition of
the Board, Board diversity shall be considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. All Board members’ appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board. Selection of candidates for the Board will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, culture, ethnicity,

educational background, professional experience, knowledge and skills.

Board Diversity Policy

It also sets out the Board's commitment to gender diversity and other diversity aspects,

with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity on the Board.

During the year 2021, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and
diversity of the Board to ensure that its composition complies with the GEM Board Listing
Rules and reflects an appropriate mix of skills, experience and diversity that are relevant
to the Company's strategy, governance and business, and contribute to the Board's

effectiveness and efficiency.

The Company discloses the composition of the Board in the corporate governance
report every year and the Nomination Committee oversees the implementation of the
Board diversity policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be

required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”) provide that at each annual
general meeting (“AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation and that every Director shall be subject to retirement at

an AGM at least once every three years.

All of the Directors, including both the executive Directors and the independent
non- executive Directors, are appointed for a specific term. Each of the independent
non- executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a period of three years subject to the rotation requirement and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated by either party giving at least one month's notice in writing.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles and, at each AGM of the Company, the

Directors will retire from office by rotation but will be eligible for re-election.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY
AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) reports to the
Directors from time to time on the latest changes to and developments of the Listing
Rules, corporate governance practices and other relevant regulatory regimes, and provides
written materials on the professional knowledge and latest developments of regulatory
requirements related to directors’ duties and responsibilities. Up to the date of this report,
all Directors have participated in continuous professional development by reading our in-
house training handbook or relevant materials or attending training seminars on the topics

related to corporate governance.
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All Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional development
and are committed to participating in any suitable training or reading relevant materials in

order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Mr. Yeung Tsz Kit Alban, the Company Secretary during the Reporting Period, complied
with the relevant professional training under Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules for the

year.

PRACTICE AND CONDUCT OF BOARD MEETINGS

Board Meeting

The Board holds at least four meetings a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Additional meetings would be arranged, if and when required. The date of each meeting
is decided in advance to enable the Directors to attend the meeting in person. For those
Directors who are not able to attend these meetings in person, participation by telephone

conference is available.

To ensure that all Directors are properly informed about the matters to be discussed at
each regular Board meeting, documents in relation to the regular Board meeting are sent

to each Director at least three days prior to the meeting.

During the year 2021, the Directors made active contributions to the affairs of the Group
and ten Board meetings were held to consider, among other things, various transactions
contemplated by the Group and to review and approve the interim results and annual

results of the Company.

Schedules and draft agenda of each Board meeting are normally made available to
Directors in advance. At least 14 days' notice should be given for a regular Board meeting.

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters considered and
decisions reached at the meetings are duly kept by the Company Secretary and are

available for inspection by the Directors.

The Articles contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or

any of their associates have a material interest.
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Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to

all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting or Audit Committee meeting to

keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and the financial position of the

Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

Details of Directors’ attendance at the AGM, Board and Board Committee meetings in

the year 2021 are set out in the following table:

ESENMHERMAEER  BRAUSER
ANBREFECHIERZECRENE
PIRFETERESUGESNERRAN
BATER R BRI SR F A E L AE
RTE °

iy

EEHER
TREHESP20N FEERRBFRE
EXeNEELECEEMNFE

Number of meetings attended/held

LR/ BITEERE
Legal
General Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Compliance
Meetings Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
EEER
BERAE Exg FHREET FHZEEE REESE Z58
Executive Directors
BITES
Ms. WONG Pui Yain 11 [1/11 - 212 11 11
afEZL
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry [/1 71 - - - 11
BEEZL
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM 11 [0/11 4/4 22 11 -
Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAMSE &
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric 11 L1711 4/4 - 11 /1
REBSE
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony /1 10/11 4/4 212 - -
WEE Keng Hiong Tony 5t 4
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Access to Information

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that may have affected
the Group's business, including those changes to relevant rules and regulations, and are
able to make further enquiries when necessary. Sufficient explanation and information
have been provided to the Board by the management to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information put before it for approval. They
also have unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for providing the Directors with board papers and related materials.
A monthly update which gives a balanced and concise assessment of the Company's
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail is provided to all Directors to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge his or her duty. The Board
has also agreed that the Directors may seek independent professional advice in performing

their Directors’ duties at the Company's expense.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage to Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against the Directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage and amount are reviewed on an

annual basis.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Legal Compliance
Committee, with delegated powers for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's
affairs. Each of the committees of the Company has been established with written terms

of reference.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of reference setting out the Audit
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website

and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, meetings shall be held not
less than four times a year and the external auditor may request a meeting if they consider

that one is necessary.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Leung
Yuk Lun Ulric, Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony, and is
chaired by Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board by providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, risk management
and intermal control systems of the Group, to oversee the audit process, to develop and
review the policies of the Group, and to perform other duties and responsibilities as

assigned by the Board.
Audit Committee

During the year, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held and resolutions were
passed by the Audit Committee to review and approve the financial results of the Group,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted, risk management and internal
control systems, the scope of non-audit services provided by the external auditors and its
independence, and financial reporting matters (in conjunction with the external auditors
for the audited results). The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatments
adopted by the Group and, to the best of its ability, assured itself that the disclosures of
the financial information in the Company's quarterly, interim and annual reports comply

with the applicable accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules.
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The Audit Committee is satisfied with their review of the auditor's remuneration, the
independence of the auditor, BDO Limited ("BDO"), and recommended the Board to re-
appoint BDO as the Company's auditor for the year ending 31 December 2021, which is
subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which opined that applicable accounting standards and

requirements have been complied with and that adequate disclosures have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of reference setting out the
Remuneration Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the

GEM website and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, a meeting shall be
held at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so

request.

The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors: Ms. Wong Pui Yain, Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam and Mr.

Wee Keng Hiong Tony, and is chaired by Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include without limitation: (a)
making recommendations to the Directors regarding the policy and structure for the
remuneration of all the Directors and the senior management of the Group and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies;
(b) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management of the Group; (c) reviewing and approving the management's
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;
and (d) considering and approving the grant of share options to eligible participants
pursuant to the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the sole shareholder of the

Company on 23 January 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme).
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The Remuneration Committee determines Directors’ remuneration by reference to
the benchmarking of the market. The Company also considers individual Director's
competence, duties, responsibilities, performance and the results of the Group in

determining the exact level of remuneration for each Director.
Remuneration Committee

During the year, two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held to review
the structure and remuneration policy of the Group and to approve the remuneration
package of the Directors. The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee according to the Directors' respective responsibilities, individual

performance and prevailing market conditions
Senior Management’s remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Group's Senior Management for the year ended 3

December 2021 falls within the following bands:

FHEZEERR2EMSERETESH
B KRR EREE@EALN BE &
T RARAKENZEBETRESNIHE
FEACFE

FHEES

RAEE  FHEEGCETMRSHUR
A ARERERERFMBCRAREES 25
MEE - FHEEEREEZREAMNAT
{ERIRR L EETRHESHME TR -

HZE2F12A3BIEFE  mAEESH
EEESNOHFNENTIRER

HK$ Number of individuals
BT A8
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 0% 1,000,000/ 7T 2

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals are set

out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group for the Directors and the senior management
was based on their experience, level of responsibility and general market conditions.
Any discretionary bonus and other merit payments are linked to the performance of the

Group and the individual performance of the Directors and the senior management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with paragraph A5.1 of the CG Code. The terms of reference setting out the Nomination
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website

and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, a meeting shall be
held at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so

request.

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors Ms. Wong Pui Yain, Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and Mr. Devin

Nijanthan Chanmugam, and is chaired by Ms. Wong Pui Yain.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to (a) review the structure, size
and composition of the Board on a regular basis; (b) identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members; () assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to

the appointment or reappointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the Board diversity policy as well as discussed matters regarding the retirement

and re-election of Directors.

Nomination Committee

During the year, one meeting of the Nomination Committee was held to review the
structure, size, composition and diversification (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, review the policy of Directors' nomination related matters,
assess the independence of INEDs, make recommendations to the Board on the proposal
of re-appointment of Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and make

recommendation to the Board on the appointment of a new Director.
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Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee adopted the Nomination Policy on 20 September 2018.

Details of the Nomination Policy are set out as follows:
Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in assessing the suitability

of a proposed candidate:
Reputation for integrity;
2. Accomplishment and experience in different industries;

3. Commitment to the Board in respect of available time and relevant interest;

4, Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and

length of services.

These factors are not meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee

has discretion to nominate any person as it considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the Nomination Committee or the Company Secretary shall call a
meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of candidates from
Board members, if any, for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to
its meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who are

not nominated by Board members.

2. For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For proposing
candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee

shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and recommendation.
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Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall not assume
that they have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the general

meeting,

In order to provide information on the candidates nominated by the Board to stand
for election at a general meeting, and to invite nominations from shareholders, a
circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will set out the lodgment period
for shareholders to make the nominations. The names, brief biographies (including
qualifications and relevant experience), independence, proposed remuneration
and any other information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules
and regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included in the circular to

shareholders.

A shareholder can serve a notice to the Company Secretary within the lodgement
period of its intention to propose a resolution to elect a certain person as a
Director, without the Board's recommendation or the Nomination Committee's
nomination, other than those candidates set out in the shareholder circular. The
particulars of the candidates so proposed will be sent to all shareholders for

information by a supplementary circular.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his or her candidature at any time before
the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the Company Secretary or

Chairman.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its recommendation

of candidates to stand for election at any general meeting.

The Nomination Committee may obtain independent professional advice, at the

Company's expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary.
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LEGAL COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a legal compliance committee on 23 January 2018. The
terms of reference setting out the Legal Compliance Committee’s authority, duties and

responsibilities are available on both the GEM website and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Legal Compliance Committee, a meeting shall
be held at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall

so request.

The Legal Compliance Committee consists of Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry, Ms. Wong Pui
Yain and Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric, and is chaired by Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry. Please
refer to the section headed “Business — Internal control and risk management measures — .
Establishment of the legal compliance committee” in the Prospectus for further details of

the principal responsibilities of the Legal Compliance Committee.

The primary function of the Legal Compliance Committee is overseeing compliance
with laws and regulations relevant to the Group's operations and the adequacy and

effectiveness of the regulatory compliance procedures and system.
During the year, the Legal Compliance Committee reviewed and is satisfied with the

compliance with laws and regulations relevant to the Group's operations and the

adequacy and effectiveness of the regulatory compliance procedures and system.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the audited consolidated financial

statements

All Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility for ensuring that the
Group's audited consolidated financial statements for each financial year are prepared to
provide a true and fair view of the state of affairs, the financial results and cash flows of
the Group in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”) and the
applicable accounting standards. In preparing the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board adopted appropriate and consistent
accounting policies and made prudent, fair and reasonable judgments and estimates. The
Directors are responsible for maintaining proper accounting records which reflect with
reasonable accuracy the state of affairs, operating results, cash flows and equity movement
of the Group at any time. The Directors confirm that the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable

accounting standards.

The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability

to continue as a going concem.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. The
auditor's statement in their reporting responsibilities on the audited consolidated financial

statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company's auditor are set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report with the full text included in pages 100 to 108 of this report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

S EM N =

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration for the audit and non-audit ~ REZE 2021 F 12 A3 B ILFE - KAFHZE

services provided by the Company's auditor to the Group was as follows: A A A ER M E T RIEFEARBOM S 0
N
Type of services Amount
AR 5 £
HK$'000
TAET
Annual audit service for the year ended 31 December 2021 EZE2021 F 12 A31 BIEFERFE R IR

~BDO Limited —BAUERREHMEHHERAF 850
Non-audit services JEST AR (M) 753
Total 85t 1,103

Note: Non-audit services include tax compliance services.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

M  FFEAREBEREARRS -

i =

No corporate governance committee has been established and the Board is responsible ARARRYERICEERRESG &%
o a = v 4ok,
BHE 14

for performing the corporate governance functions such as developing and reviewing

A
the Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance, training and continuous DRIGEERNBRERER  REZFRER

;.

professional development of the Directors and senior management, and the Company's EREREBEIRFESERE  BRAR

AN

policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. ARERERTREELEERES

The Directors review the Group's corporate governance policies and compliance with the EEHEMRFERAAEENCEE AR

CG Code each financial year and comply with the “Comply or Explain” principle in the RREBTFLEERTINGBR - WETFAE
corporate governance report which is or will be included in the reports of the Company. MEEERREPEN [ EBTHEE R
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all of the Directors complied with such required standard of dealings and
its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the year ended 31

December 2021 and up to the date of this report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with the shareholders
and in particular, through AGMs or other general meetings to communicate with the

shareholders and encourage their participation.

The Company will ensure that there are separate resolutions for separate issues proposed
at the general meetings. All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each

shareholders’ meeting.
The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective investor communication
policy and to update investors on relevant information on the Group's business in a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.
(@)  Significant Changes in the Constitutional Documents
For the year ended 3| December 2021, there has been no significant change in
the constitutional documents of the Company. The Articles are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

(b)  General Meetings with shareholders

The Company's AGM will be held on 17 June 2022.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(@)

52

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on
the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company. Shareholders also have the right to propose a
person for election as a Director, the procedures are available on the websites of

the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board to the extent such
information is publicly available to the Company Secretary who is responsible for
forwarding communications relating to matters within the Board's purview to the
executive Directors of the Company, communications relating to matters within
a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the chairperson of the appropriate
committee, and communication relating to ordinary business matters, such as
suggestions, enquiries and consumer complaints, to the appropriate management of
the Company, in writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong

Kong.

Putting forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcome to put forward proposals relating to the operations
and the management of the Group to be discussed at shareholders’ meetings.
The proposals shall be sent to the Company Secretary by a written requisition.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary
general meeting by following the procedures set out in “"Convening an

extraordinary general meeting” above.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is key to enhancing
investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its shareholders and the investing public. The Company updates its
shareholders on its latest business developments and financial performance through annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the Company (www.jiagroup.co)

has provided an effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Subject to the approval of the shareholders and requirements of relevant laws, the
Company shall pay annual dividends to the shareholders if the Group is profitable, its
operational environment is stable and there is no significant investment or commitment
made by the Group. The Company's ability to pay dividends will depend upon, among
other things, the Group's actual and expected financial performance, retained earnings and
distributable reserves, liquidity position, future cash requirements and availability, restriction
on payments of dividends that may be imposed by the Group's lenders, the general

market conditions and any other factor(s) that the Board may consider appropriate.

Any declaration and payment of future dividends under the dividend policy are subject to
the Board's determination that the same would be in the best interests of the Group and

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
On 4 February 2022, Mr. Yeung Tsz Kit Alban has resigned as the Company Secretary.

Mr. Yeung confirmed that he had no disagreement with the Board and that there were
no matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the

shareholders of the Company in connection with his resignation.

On 4 February 2022, Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina of CS Legend Business Services Limited,
an external services provider, has been appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company. Her primary contact person at the Company is Ms. Wong Pui Yain, the
chairperson of the Group. Please refer to the announcement dated 4 February 2022 for

further details of the change of Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary, is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board's policy and procedures, and the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are followed. All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board's procedures and all applicable laws are
followed. Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating communications

among Directors as well as with management.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company Secretary undertook more than
I'5 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing

Rules.
Access to Information

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that may have affected
the Group's business, including those changes to relevant rules and regulations, and are
able to make further enquiries when necessary. Sufficient explanation and information
have been provided to the Board by the management to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information put before it for approval. They
also have unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for providing the Directors with board papers and related materials.
A monthly update which gives a balanced and concise assessment of the Company's
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail is provided to all Directors to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge his or her duty. The Board
has also agreed that the Directors may seek independent professional advice in performing

their Directors’ duties at the Company's expense.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The Group's systems
of risk management and internal control include a defined management structure with
limits of authority, which is designed to help achieve business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication,
and ensure compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and

achievement of the Group's objectives.

An organisational structure with operating policies and procedures, lines of responsibility
and delegated authority has been established. The division/department head of each
core operating division/department is accountable for the conduct and performance of
the respective division/department within the agreed strategies (which are set by the

respective head together with the Board) and reports directly to the Board.

The Group has in place a policy on the handling and disclosure of inside information,
setting out the appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify and assess
potential inside information. The Board has delegated the responsibilities for the handling
and dissemination of inside information to the executive directors and management
team who will maintain appropriate and effective reporting procedures responding to
the development or circumstances of the Group in timely manner so that the Board can

decide whether disclosure is necessary.
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In the course of conducting the business, the Group is exposed to various types of risks.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the following principal risks of the Group
were identified and classified into strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and

compliance risks.

Risk Areas
Bk A

Principal Risks
TERR

ERREBKBIET  FEEHESERR -

@immimﬂyaﬁiﬁ’$ﬁﬁﬁﬂ

&%Tﬂixﬂ PO BAEKER  2ER
- B R A SRR

Strategic Risks

BiR R

Operational Risks
2ERR

Financial Risks

Lupi e

Compliance Risks

Sensitivity to government policies; keeping up with new technologies and customers' taste; market competition risk,

reputation risk

HHABRROSRM - REFRAEP @K - mEHTEAR - BERMR

Insufficient labour supply; workplace injury; disruption of IT system

BPNHETR - TH - BARMREGTT

Liquidity risk; credit risk; interest rate risk; inflation risk

/}IL@J ﬁ%ﬂ 1;‘%“ PR *ljtﬂ PR @HEEW&

Risk related to occupational safety and health; risk of non-compliance with ordinances related to employment; changes

of the GEM Listing Rules and relevant company regulations and ordinances

AHRER
B

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management of the Group and it has
delegated to the executive management, the responsibilities to carry out the risk
identification and monitoring procedures. The objectives of the risk management are to
enhance the governance and corporate management processes as well as to safeguard the

Group against unacceptable levels of risks and losses.

The risk management process of the Group will involve, amongst others, (i) an annual risk
identification and analysis exercise which involves assessment of the consequences and
likelihood of risks and the development of risk management plans for mitigating such risks;
and (i) an annual review of the implementation of the risk management plans and fine

tuning of the implementation plan when necessary.
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During the year under review, the management outsourced its internal audit function
to an independent internal audit firm (the “Internal Auditor”). The Internal Auditor
reported directly to the Audit Committee on all internal audit matters. The internal audit
plan was submitted to the Audit Committee for approval prior to the commencement
of the internal audit work. The Audit Committee reviewed the internal audit report
and monitored the implementation of the improvements required on internal control

weaknesses identified.

Even though the Group does maintain an internal audit function, the Board has overall
responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Based on the review of the Group's internal control systems, the Directors
were satisfied that effective internal control measures as appropriate to the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 were implemented properly and that no significant areas

of weaknesses were identified.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will continue to review its corporate governance standards on a timely basis
and the Board endeavours to take the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the

required practices and standards including the provisions of the CG Code.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Jia Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report, with
disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting Guidelines as described in Appendix 20
to the GEM Listing Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange").

Reporting Boundary

The Group was listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange in 2018 with stock code 8519.
The Group is a well-established restaurant group in Hong Kong with award-winning
restaurants serving a variety of cuisines including Chinese, Spanish, Italian, French, Nyonya

and Thai, and specialty coffee under different brands and themes.

This ESG report covers the Group's overall performance in two subject areas, namely,
environmental and social, of its food and beverages operations (“F&B Operations” as
listed below, that contributed to a revenue of HK$221.3 million) and its headquarters in
Hong Kong from | January 2021 to 3| December 2021 (the “Reporting Period"), unless

otherwise stated.

The Group's F&B Operations include the following: Ramato (formerly known as “208
Duecento Otto"), 22 Ships, Bibi & Baba, Chachawan, Duddell's (Airport), Duddell’s
(Central), Louise, Mak Mak, MONO, And O, Estro, and Between.

FARAERE

EREEERAR (A28 ] ERENMEA
G ARE])MAZINEERE  #Hg
RERESE - RRELEGEM EMR AR
“HEIIZRE e RERREESIUR
BEABMARZMERAR ([BRAT])EI 2
HEI R -

HEEE

REER0I8SFEBRIMGEM LT » RH
RIERSI9 - AEBEREBE -—RARER
8 ETEEEERE RENEZRGE
BR  BRETEMEREBNTE BT
¥ BARFE - FEFE - REX - ZERER
FEmINmE

ARE HEREAREREAEEEHRE
B (P& EHRAEL 21 3EBATERE
[BHRER ) REBEBAHLR2021FIAIBE
2021 F 12431 B ([REH ) FEMEF BES
(BIRERME)NBERER - SAHPMR
B

REBMBREBRIETHIEIE  Ramato(Fl
f8[208 Duecento Otto]) * 22 Ships * Bibi &
Baba * Chachawan * #EFI& 1 (K15) - #Z
Fle e (F3R) » Louise  Mak Mak * MONO -
And O * Estro M Between ©
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BRI - 4B RERERE

ESG Management Approach

Being part of the food and beverages industry implies that the Group's operations could
affect a wide variety of people, the environment in adjacent areas, and their inhabitants.
With due consideration, the Group is committed to placing an emphasis on employees'
health and safety, being sensitive to resources used (including food ingredients and energy)

and respecting people living in nearby communities.

Such commitment is enacted by closely following and strictly complying with all relevant
laws, regulations and policies. It is expected that a series of more detailed policies and
targets regarding such issues will be developed for better measurement of the Group's

ESG performance.

The Group understands that the leadership and participation of the Board is crucial to the
implementation of sustainable development strategies. Therefore, the Board shoulders the
responsibility of leading and supervising ESG related matters and is responsible for leading
the Group to seize the opportunities and respond to the risks brought by sustainable
development. The Board regularly decides on and monitors ESG policies and strategies,
including the approval and consideration of the ESG-related goals, progress review of the
goals and evaluation and prioritisation of the materiality, etc. At the same time, the Board
has approved the establishment of an ESG task force of the Group and has authorised
it to monitor and implement various ESG-related matters, so as to further improve the

effectiveness of sustainable development governance.
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\

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT FZtHEAE S H

The Group recognises the responsibility and accountability to all our stakeholders. To  ANEERAE 2B H mHEERENETR
understand and address the key concerns of different stakeholders, the Group has ME - AEEEARANGEEERFEDE
maintained close communication with its stakeholders. It will continue to increase the BATHEBRAETERIRE - KR
involvement of stakeholders via constructive conversation to achieve long term prosperity. BEFUNEFEERSNREBENSHE
Stakeholders” expectations have been taken into consideration by utilising diversified ~ 12& * M BHRREAEE o $E.E7F|JFH—F§‘J

engagement methods and communication channels as shown below: ZlbBEEERBR F EEN A
&R
Stakeholders Possible Issue of Concern Communication Channels
FEERE BHERIEE BERE
Government/regulatory authorities . Compliance with policies and regulations . Routine reporting and disclosure
. Operational compliance . Announcements
. Press releases
BT/ B « BTHEEREAD « PlITHRERKE
- ARRE N
- HEZM
Customers . Food and services quality . Company website
. Delivery time . Phone and email communication
. Communication with staff
. Customer comment cards
®F - RmMERBEE © REWL
. RARE - BENETER

- HBETER
- EBEPEBAR

Suppliers . Supplier management . Supplier assessment
. Customer service . Site visits

At - HEmER - HEmRHE
- BPR® . BHAE
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Stakeholders Possible Issue of Concern Communication Channels
MzEEE BEBEEE BRERE
Employees Rights and benefits Employee training

Remuneration and compensation
Career development and training
Working hours

Occupational health and safety

Working environment

Employee communication meetings
Performance reviews
Union activities

Employee handbook

B8 M Koz Al BB
FEHEL (B EREREE
BRI RBRGHE
TR TEES
BEREEZE B & F it
THERE

Shareholders and Investors

Corporate governance system
Business strategies and performance

Corporate transparency and reputation

Annual/Extraordinary general meetings
Annual reports and announcements

Company website and email

BREREE EERERHE BRBE RIS
REREENER FHREAE
CREPERBE R & EE
Community Community environment Community activities
Employment and community development Employee voluntary activities
Social welfare Community welfare subsidies
Charitable donations
gt HEBIRE HEREE
ERELRER EEEKED
HEEM HtRENHE
RERE
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The Group aims to collaborate with its stakeholders to improve its ESG performance
and create greater value for the wider community. Feedback on the Group's approach
and performance relating to ESG are welcomed. Please contact the Group by email at
info@jiagroup.co. Your feedback and suggestions would be of great value to the Group in

its journey of continuous improvement in sustainability.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group complies with all requirements relating to air emission, greenhouse gases and
hazardous waste regulated under relevant laws in Hong Kong, such as the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap. 311), and the Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358).

No cases of non-compliance were noted during the Reporting Period.

Air Emissions

During the Reporting Period, the Group emitted 0.06 kg of sulphur oxides (SOx)
and 22.99 kg of nitrogen oxides (NOx) from the consumption of Towngas in its
F&B Operations’ kitchens. Oily fumes, which causes odour to be emitted to nearby
neighbourhoods, are also emitted from the Group's kitchens. The Group is committed
to reducing and better controlling such emissions through various measures, such as
the installation of efficient filtering equipment and the regular maintenance of ventilation
systems. It also selects restaurant locations which are distant from densely populated

neighbourhoods to reduce nuisance caused to nearby residents.

BIR - HERERHE
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BRI HEREBRE

Use of Energy and Water

Involved in the food and beverage industry, the most significant resources used by the
Group are energy, powered by Towngas, electricity, and water. During the Reporting
Period, 5748147.52 Megajoules (M]) of Towngas, 2,428,763.575 kWh of electricity,
and 58,834 m* of water were consumed by the Group's operations. Altogether, they
contributed to 2,126.03 of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) of greenhouse gas (GHG)

emissions. The Group has set a target of a 10% reduction in carbon emission over the

FEREERR K

R (BRI RENES) RKRASERE
BHTEGANREZAR - RREH X
EEMEEEEERS74814752KEE - BH
2,428,763.575 T FLBs &R 7K58,834 L 1K » &

EEBEREHR 2603 _ElHES -
AEEEHIE T — B+ FHBERR L 1068 B

7N

next 10 years, 0
Sources of GHG emissions Emission Sub-total  Proportion
BEREFHRR 235 it it
(in tCO,e) (in tCO,e) (in %)
(B-Efilk (Bt
EE) EE) (%)
Scope | #E| Combustion of Towngas BREERER 30571 305,71 14%
Direct emission BEHN
Scope 2 #ED Purchased electricity BENEN 172338 179427 84%
Fnergy indirect emission  BEIRRIEHEIR  Purchased Towngas BENER 70.89
Scope 3 #E3 Flectricity used for processing BRI #RFS,/ B =4 2453 26,04 1%
Other indirect emission Hiv R fresh water by govemment FRENEERK
departments/third parties
Flectricity used for processing BRI #RPS,/ B =4 151
sewage by government ERENREEK
departments/third parties
Total st 2,126.03 2,12603 100%
Intensity (tCO.e/HK$ | million revenue) BE(M_EtREE/ | 5EETRA) 9.79

Note |: Emission factors were with reference to Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and their fEEl: BREAHAIN -
FT3 2 GEM LR ISR — + R priRit

referred documentation as set out by the Stock Exchange, unless stated otherwise.
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Note 2: Scope | Combustion of Towngas includes GHG emitted during combustion of Towngas
within the organisational boundaries; Scope 2 purchased Towngas includes GHG emitted

within Towngas Ltd when Towngas was produced.

BIR - HERERHE

PEE2: EE | MR R ER AR R AR
RAEERORERE  HE2EENER
BENEERRF Towngas Ltd N ESHERE)
IMEREE

Energy Consumption BEIFURFE Original Unit MWh Intensity (MWh/$1M)
RInEM KEE BE KRN/ 15EET)

Electricity EV) 2,428,763 kWh 242876 12
2428763 F FL B 242876 12

Towngas B 5,748,147.52 M| 1,596.71 735
574814752 K EEE 1,596.71 735

Total et 402547 18.5

The Group adopts a holistic management approach to reduce energy consumption,
thereby reducing GHG emissions. Some of the measures including prioritising energy
efficient hardware and equipment, such as air conditioners and refrigerators with Grade |
energy labels, when a replacement is necessary; designing restaurants’ layout and workflow
with energy-saving considerations; and encouraging employees to adopt green working
practices. The same approach applies to water conservation, where advanced technology
is deployed and water saving behaviour is promoted to employees of the Group. In
the upcoming year, the Group will explore opportunities for replacing and installing
equipment, such as flow controllers and efficient energy systems, in its restaurants’ kitchens
for improved energy and water efficiency. The Group has set a target of a 10% reduction

in energy consumption over the next 10 years.

Water Discharge

Water pollution control licenses issued by the Environmental Protection Department of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region have been obtained for all the Group's F&B
Operations. The Group has installed sufficient equipment to ensure sewage is properly

processed before discharge.
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BRI - 4B RERERE

Waste Management

The Group complied with the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) when handling and disposing of waste. The major types of waste generated from
the Group's operations were waste cooking oil, food waste from the Group's diners, and
bottles from pre-packaged beverages. During the Reporting Period, the F&B Operations!
of the Group recorded a generation of 7,370.88 litres of waste cooking oil, which indicates
an intensity of 29.47 litres/HK$ | million revenue. All waste cooking oil was handled by

qualified collectors and recycled into biodiesel eventually.

For food waste, although the Group cannot control how much food diners consume,
employees are trained to always offer diners an option to take leftover food home
to reduce wastage. Operation manuals and training on food ordering and processing
guidelines are available for employees to study how food waste reduction can be
promoted. Considering that some diners may have a smaller appetite, several F&B
Operations of the Group, such as Between, have established recipes and portion controls
to avoid serving excessive food. The Group expects more of its operations to adopt such

practices to reduce food waste.

In 2021, the Group introduced Nordagq, a tap water filtering system, in some of its
dining venues, such as Louise, And O, Duddell's, etc, to reduce bottle waste that would
otherwise have been generated from serving still or sparking water. This practice is
expected to reduce waste generated significantly in the long term.

To carry out administrative activities in offices, paper is consumed, of which the Group
is taking an active role to control. Reduction methods, such as duplex printing, reusing
one-sided paper, recycling used paper and reading electronically, are encouraged. The
Group has yet to establish an effective recording system for waste generation but expects
it to be ready in the next Reporting Period. No hazardous wastes were generated during
the Reporting Period due to the Group's business nature. In the upcoming year, the
investigation of further waste reduction initiatives and recycling outlets will be one of the

Group's top priorities to limit its part in putting stress on the landfills.

Excluding generation from And O, Behind Bars and Between, which pass their waste cooking
oil to communal grease traps, and do not have readily available record of their respective
waste cooking oil generation.
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Use of Packaging Materials

To better maintain the quality and ensure the safety of the Group's food products, the
F&B Operations uses certain packaging materials including takeaway boxes, plastic bags, as
well as various disposables in the Group's restaurant operations. The Group understands
the environmental impacts of such materials, and therefore has set out guidelines for its
employees regarding usage minimisation and encourages customers to reuse and recycle
as much as possible. The Group understands it may be hard for customers to reuse and
recycle, hence, recyclable packaging materials or those made from environmentally friendly
substances are preferred. During the Reporting Period, the Group purchased significantly
more packaging materials, mainly because of the increase in takeaway orders due to the
temporary dine-in ban imposed by authorities under the COVID-19 pandemic. Yet, the
actual amount of packaging materials procured is not readily available as the surge in

demand made it hard to properly record the actual amount used.

Managing Impacts on the Environment and Natural Resources

Since all F&B Operations are located in prime locations, the Group is aware of the
importance of environmental management and have developed mechanisms to identify,
assess and mitigate the environmental risks arising from the Group's operations. The
Group did not note any material non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations
during the Reporting Period. As for the sources of ingredients and food used for preparing
the restaurants’ dishes, the Group upholds a principle of avoiding the use of ingredients
that may bring harm to the environment or natural habitats. When possible, the F&B
Operations source ingredients from sustainable sources, such as those that are Marine
Stewardship Council (MSC) certified, or those that are organically farmed. The Group will
continue to examine the possibility of promoting dishes that consider their environmental

impacts.
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CLIMATE CHANGE
Physical risk

Extreme weather events, such as typhoons, storm surges and rainstorms, will disrupt
production, transportation and ultimately sales revenue. Extreme weather events may
affect footfall, and thereby revenue, in many of the Group's properties which may result in

adverse effects on the Group's revenue.

The Group acknowledges that climate change will inevitably affect food and beverage
operations in the future. Food resources may become scarcer, and therefore costs of

business are likely to rise and affect revenue.

Changing weather patterns can affect everything from crop yields and livestock health
to the logistics of food production and availability, and from industry financial structures
to consumer preferences and expectations. On the most basic level, not only will global
warming change what is being served in restaurants and the cost of products, but it will
almost certainly create seasonal limitations on certain food items. While some of the
worst effects of climate change are still in the future, menus and store shelves are already

being impacted, and that impact will only become more evident over time.

The Group takes sustainability in its operations seriously. Wherever possible, food is
procured from sustainable sources, such as Marine Steward Council (MSC) certified
ocean products, and sustainable meat sources from around the world. Wherever possible,

ingredients are sourced locally to reduce transport impacts on the environment.
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Transitional risk

Warming New England waters are contributing to shifting lobster populations, Pacific
salmon are changing their migration behaviours, the grapes and growing season in
California wine country are being impacted, and there is even a chance of significant
coffee shortages over the next few decades. Unstable food sources and food prices in
the medium and long term will impact the quality of our food served and eventually our

revenue.

According to the UN, the food sector accounts for around 30% of world's total energy
consumption and for around 22% of total greenhouse gas emissions. Restaurants will
inevitably be impacted by vigorous fluctuations in energy prices. The future uncertainty of

carbon tax that may also be a transition risk that will be hard to mitigate.

Opportunities

As technological advances cut down many day to day operating costs, the Group invests
heavily on upgrading its IT systems, to ensure a smooth workflow and reduce time

wastage within the Group.

As eating and drinking habits evolve, the Group caters to a wide variety of clientele,
thereby increasing its overall appeal to a wider audience. As these habits change, the

Group adapts its menus accordingly to reflect these changes in diets.

Whilst climate change will invariably affect food and beverage operational costs, the
Group sees opportunities to adapt its operations to increase overall revenue in the long

run.
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SOCIAL

The Group aims to ensure that the health, safety and welfare of its employees are well
taken care of and the Group acknowledges its responsibility towards employees who
may be affected by its activities. The Group regards legislative compliance as a minimum,
and whenever possible, the Group seeks to implement higher health and safety standards

throughout the Group.
Employment

The Group has established a comprehensive human resources policy to govern the
Group's recruitment and dismissal procedures, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare in accordance
with the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group has
not identified any material non-compliance with employment-related laws and regulations

during the Reporting Period.

The Group offers competitive packages, as well as development opportunities to the
Group's employees to attract talents. The Group respects everyone and prohibits
discrimination of any kind. The Group ensures equal opportunities in all of the Group's
human resources’ practices, regardless of gender, pregnancy, marital status, disability, family
status, race, etc. To better recognise the contribution of the Group's employees, the
Group has established a fair performance evaluation mechanism to promote and award

employees on a regular basis.

As of 31 December 2021, the F&B Operations had a total of 388 employees, with an
annual staff turnover rate of 63%, the staff who left the Group this reporting year are

mainly frontline and other staff, middle management and staff who are aged between

18-35.
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TOTAL WORKFORCE BY GENDER
BEERBSHE TR

Female

43%

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY JOB GRADE

SREESNET A

Senior Management ManMais:rlneent
& 4 e =
BREEAE PREERAE

7% 10%

Frontline & Other Staff
AR HEMET
84%

Male

57%

R HERERBRE

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY AGE GROUP
BEREIINEIRH

56 or above

S6m ALk

18-25

9% 18-253%
46-55 13%
46-555%
14%
26-35
36-45
36455 26358

22% 41%

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY EMPLOYEMENT TYPE
RERERESTHEIAH

Part Time
R
37%

Full Time
28
63%
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Total Turnover Rate by Employment Category, Age Group, Gender

RERER - FRERMBE D HARKE

Turnover rate by employee category RERERESHRAE

Senior management BREEAE 16%
Middle management HREEAE 70%
Frontline and other staff AN EMET 68%
Turnover rate by age group BRERBRESHRAE

18-25 18-257% 92%
26-35 26-3575% 76%
36-45 36-455% 43%
46-55 46-555% 48%
56 or above 565% A E 29%
Turnover rate by gender RERIEI D R AR

Male Bt 69%
Female 4 54%

Workplace Health and Safety

The Group seeks to create a safe working environment for the Group's employees.
The Group has established the Health and Safety at Work Policy to provide guidelines
and raise the awareness of safety in the Group's restaurants in accordance with the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Law of Hong Kong).
Accidents are reported to management and handled promptly in accordance with
the Group's standard procedures. The Group has also formed the Health and Safety

Committee to oversee the related risks and meets with the operations teams regularly to

understand their concerns in relation to the working environment.

To further mitigate the health and safety risks in the Group’s restaurants, staff are required
to attend training on health and safety-related topics, such as first aid, fire evacuation,

and other emergency procedures upon employment with the Group, as well as regularly

during their employment.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any material noncompliance with

occupational safety and health-related laws and regulations.

For the number and rate of work-related fatalities, the Group reported 8 cases of fatality,

and the fatality rate is 2%. Also, the Group reported 333 lost days due to work injury.

Training and Development

To maintain a high level of service standard and to enhance its employees’ know-how and
competence, the Group provides on-the-job trainings to employees working in different
sections of the restaurant's operations. Topics include food preparation and preservation,
customer services, quality control, various dietary requirements, etc. Each week, each
F&B Operation holds an internal briefing to give staff frequent reminders of workflows or
procedures to take note of. The Group strives to ensure that all its employees receive

adequate training, both at the time when they join the Group and on a continuing basis.

All employees undergo around 4 hours of orientation training when on boarding. The
group provides ongoing internal training for every staff member and arranges external
training when necessary. Under the peak of pandemic during the Reporting Period, we
had difficulties arranging any external training for our staff, and no details of training hours

were recorded during the Reporting Period.

Anti-Child and Forced Labour

All the Group's restaurants and offices strictly comply with the requirements of the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) which explicitly prohibits
child and forced labour. Multiple control measures, such as background checks and identity
verification, have been implemented in the recruitment process to ensure that all new

joiners are legitimate workers in Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any material non-compliance with

child and forced labour-related laws and regulations.
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Procurement Management

The Group requires its suppliers to deliver services or products that meet the Group's
internal quality standards and relevant regulatory requirements in Hong Kong. To ensure
that the Group's suppliers maintain a desired level of quality and would be of assistance to
the F&B Operations in delivering cuisines that are high quality and safe for consumption,
the Group only purchases from pre-approved suppliers who have passed the Group's
initial assessment. When applicable, the Group prioritises suppliers which have attained
certain certifications or those which meet specified food standards. Prior to using
suppliers’ food products, inspection needs to be carried out by the Group's chefs; food
supplies that do not meet the Group's standards are returned to the suppliers. To ensure
food prepared are consistent, regular meetings and performance review of suppliers are
performed on a timely basis. Suppliers who fail to meet the Group's quality standard are

removed from the Group's supplier list.

The Group takes sustainability in its operations seriously. Wherever possible, food is
procured from sustainable sources, such as Marine Steward Council (MSC) certified
ocean products, and sustainable meat sources from around the world. Purchasing
local, sustainable and humanely produced food supports responsible farming practices.
Furthermore, to reduce its carbon footprint, the Group usually procures from local
suppliers when possible. The F&B Operations are looking into establishing cooperative
relationships with local farms to secure a sustainable and stable supply of safe and fresh

ingredients.
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Dining Experience

The Group strives to give diners the ultimate experience where they would leave only
with a satisfied stomach and great memories. To achieve such a goal, the Group delivers
high-quality food and beverage services through understanding diners’ expectations and
innovation. The former is done by consistently communicating with diners to understand
their preferences and special dietary requirements relating to allergies, religion and beliefs,
etc,; whereas the latter is executed by emphasising the use of fresh and healthy ingredients
and re-designing menus quarterly to ensure a fresh, enjoyable and taste buds stimulating

experience for all visitors.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, food preparation has been a challenge across
operations since the increase in take-away orders indicates more unforeseeable variables
with food delivered outside of restaurants. Yet, the F&B Operations has been vigilant in
implementing all necessary measures in its capacity to prevent any potential food safety
risks occurring due to transportation of food. With due care given, the Group has not

noted any complaints relating to food delivered.

To provide visitors with an excellent experience, customer service is another key element
of the F&B Operations. To enhance employees’ competence in serving with confidence
and dealing with queries, training is arranged to refine their techniques. Any complaints
received and relevant performance of each operation are reported to senior management
daily such that the Group can discuss how improvements can be made. Guaranteeing the

F&B Operations’ quality of food and services will remain a top priority of the Group.
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Customer Safety and Food Hygiene

The F&B Operations maintain a high food hygiene and safety standard in kitchens and
dining areas by implementing appropriate internal control and management systems.
Sufficient and adequate training are provided to the Group's staff to equip them with
knowledge on proper food handling, During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
identify any cases of matenial non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to food

hygiene matters.

When the COVID-19 pandemic hit, the health and safety of diners remained the Group's
top concern. The F&B Operations invested resources and time in safeguarding interests of
diners, by disinfecting restaurants frequently, sourcing all necessary protective equipment,
such as surgical masks and hand sanitisers, for employees to prevent a potential spread of
the disease, and providing diners with mask holders and any necessary protective gear on

request.

Advertising and Menu Setting

In accordance with the Trade Description Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), the Group ensures that the contents of its advertisements and menus truly
reflect only facts and are consistent with the Group's services and products without
exaggeration. The Group has not identified any material non-compliance with advertising

and labelling-related laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.
Data Privacy

The Group is committed to protecting the privacy of its customers, business partners,
and staff, and strictly follows the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “PDPQ") in the collection, processing and use of their personal
data. Employees are expected to respect privacy and keep personal data obtained, held
and processed during the business process confidential in accordance with relevant terms
and conditions as set out in the employment contract and internal policies. At no given
time shall such information be disclosed or used beyond the purpose of the collection.
Any breach of such policies may result in termination of employment without prior notice.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not note of any non-compliance with the
PDPO.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Anti-Corruption

The Group implements adequate internal controls in preventing and detecting bribery,

extortion and fraud.

To prevent any bribery or kickback arrangements between the Group's employees and
suppliers, certain policies, such as supplier due diligence, segregation of duties, declaration
of conflict of interest, etc, have been set out. The employee handbook also lists out the
code of conduct that includes employees' responsibilities and role in avoiding participation
in any misconduct. A whistle-blowing policy which allows staff to report suspicious cases
of behaviours that violate the principles of honesty and integrity is also in place. To
strengthen employees” understanding and maintain their awareness of relevant issues, the
Group has invited the Independent Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC") to deliver
anti-bribery talks to the Group's staff during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has one concluded legal case which concemed
outstanding salary payment, and it was pending to the court due to the Covid-19

pandemic.

Caring for the Community

The Group values its relationship with the community. It participates in various charitable
events to support the underprivileged and encourages its employees to perform similar
acts by donating and doing community service. It also aims to utilise its resources to create
a harmonious environment in the areas that it operates and strengthen bonding within
the Group to build the Group's brand in the neighbourhood. With increasing awareness
of sustainability promotion, the Group is looking at ways to make further contributions.
Currently at MONO, a 1% carbon tax is implemented and donated to Zero Foodprint,
which subsidises farmers to work on healthy soil projects. The Group hopes to be able
to team up with more organisations who share similar values in the future to make a
wider impact. It will also maintain an open channel of communication with its stakeholders
and communities to understand their motivations, goals and needs through continuous
conversation to achieve the Group's contributions in corporate social responsibility

activities.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. The principal

activities of the Group is the operation of restaurants in Hong Kong.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out on page 109
of this report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2021.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years is set out on pages 22| to 224 of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Use of Proceeds from Placing of New Shares
under General Mandate” in Management Discussion and Analysis, the Group had no

definite future plans for material investments and capital assets.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year

ended 3| December 2021 are set out in note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group at 3| December 2021 are set out in note 27 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 3|

December 2021 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated
in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$2.6 million (2020:
HK$24.3 million).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company repurchased a total of 6,410,000
ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company (the
“Shares”) on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with the aggregate
consideration paid (before expenses) amounting to HK$697,874.00. 6,210,000 of Shares
repurchased were subsequently cancelled. As at 31 December 2021, the total number of
Shares in issue was |,161,190,000.

fiife
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Aggregate
Number of consideration
Date Share Repurchases Purchase price per share (before expenses)
BRE
Sk BERGOHE FRECE (RFTBAXZAT)
Highest Lowest
BE RIE
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(Ex) (&) (B7)
I3 September 2021 2021 F9 A 13H 400,000 0.104 0.104 41,600.00
14 September 2021 2021 F9 A 148 590,000 0.105 0.103 62,082.00
I5 September 2021 20219 A 158 210,000 0.106 0.106 22,393.00
16 September 202 20219 A 168 300,000 0.107 0.106 32,147.00
|7 September 2021 2021F9A 178 200,000 0.108 0.108 21,733.00
20 September 202 2021F9H208 1,650,000 0.112 0.100 177,567.00
21 September 2021 2021F9A21 8 360,000 0.114 0.113 41,000.00
24 September 202! 2021F9A248 200,000 0.114 0.114 22,934.00
27 September 2021 2021F9A278 400,000 0.15 0.112 45,356.00
28 September 2021 20219 A28H 150,000 0.16 0.115 17,426.00
05 October 2021 2021 F10A58 210,000 0.120 0.17 25,037.00
07 October 2021 2021 F10A78 330,000 0.122 0.118 39,678.00
30 November 202 202111 A30H 220,000 0.1 0.107 23,955.00
0 1 December 202 | 2021F12A 18 200,000 0.112 0.1'0 22,273.00
02 December 2021 202112728 210,000 0.13 0.1'0 23,725.00
14 December 2021 2021512 A 140 330,000 0.102 0.095 32,658.00
20 December 2021 2021512 A20H 100,000 0.102 0.101 10,267.00
21 December 2021 202112421 H 150,000 0.102 0.102 15,423.00
23 December 202 | 2021512 A23H 200,000 0.103 0.100 20,620.00
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The Board believes that the share repurchase may, depending on market conditions and
funding arrangements at that time, lead to an enhancement of its eamning per share, and
will benefit the Company and shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of
the Company.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 3| December 2021 and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Pui Yain
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony

Pursuant to article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting, at least one-third of
the Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given the Company an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent

and meet the independent guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

(@)  Executive Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a renewal service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 23 January 2021
(subject to termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the relevant service
contract), which may be terminated by not less than one month’s notice served by
either party on the other. The appointments are subject to the provisions of the
Articles with regard to vacation of office of Directors and removal and retirement

by rotation of Directors.
(b)  Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a period of three years commencing from 23
January 2021 (subject to termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the
relevant letter of appointment), which may be terminated by not less than one
month'’s notice served by either party on the other. The appointments are subject
to the provisions of the Articles with regard to vacation of office of Directors and
removal and retirement by rotation of Directors. Save for the directors’ fee, none
of the independent non-executive Directors is expected to receive any other
remuneration for holding their office as an independent non-executive Director

and a member of any board committees of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has entered into any service agreement with any
member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the employer

within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The emoluments of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration Committee
with reference to the benchmarking of the market. The Company also looks at individual
Director's competence, duties, responsibilities and performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the
Group are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are set out

on pages 24 to 29 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or an entity connected with any
of them had any material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, parent company or subsidiaries of the parent
company was a party and subsisting at any time during or at the end of the year ended 3|
December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, no contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders of the Company or

any of their subsidiaries.

DIRECTOR'’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT
SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2021
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement that enables the Directors or chief executive of the Company (including their
spouses or children under |8 years of age) to have any right to subscribe for securities of
the Company or any of its specified undertakings as defined in the Companies (Report of
the Board of Directors) Regulation or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares

in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Company did not enter into or have any management
and/or administration contracts in respect of the whole or any principal business of the

Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan (the spouse of Ms. Wong Pui Yain) resigned as an executive
director and disposed his 15.25% shareholding in Classified Group (Holdings) Limited in
April 2020, a company engaged in the business of restaurants operation in Hong Kong.
Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any business and interest of the
Directors nor the controlling shareholders of the Company nor any of their respective
close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with
the business of the Group and any other conflict of interests which any such person has
or may have with the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this report.
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COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Ms. Wong Pui Yain and Giant Mind International Limited (“Giant Mind") (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-competition dated 23 January 2018 (the
"Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the Company (for itself and each of its
subsidiaries), pursuant to which each of the Controlling Shareholders has, unconditionally
and irrevocably, undertaken to the Company in the Deed of Non-Competition that she/
it will not, and will procure her/its close associates (other than members of the Group)
not to, for herself/itself or jointly with or acting for any other person, firm or company as
shareholder(s), director(s), partner(s), agent(s), employee(s) or otherwise, and whether
or not for profit, remuneration or other purpose, directly or indirectly be involved or
engaged in or undertake any business (other than the business of the Group) that directly
or indirectly competes, or may compete, with the Group's business or undertaking (the
“Restricted Activity"), or hold shares or interest in any companies or business that
compete directly or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to
time except where the Controlling Shareholders and/or her/its close associates hold less
than 5% of the total issued shares of any company (whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange or other stock exchange) which is engaged in any business that is or may be in
competition with any business engaged by any member of the Group and they do not

control 10% or more of the composition of the board of directors of such company.

Further, each of the Group's Controlling Shareholders has undertaken that if any new
business investment or other business opportunity relating to the Restricted Activity (the
"Competing Business Opportunity”) is identified by or made available to her/it or any
of her/its close associates, she/it shall, and shall procure that her/its close associates shall,

refer such Competing Business Opportunity to the Company on a timely basis.

For further details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to the section headed
“Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders — Non-competition undertaking and

corporate governance measures to manage conflicts of interests” in the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company of her/its compliance
with the Deed of Non-Competition during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this report. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition have been complied by each of the Controlling Shareholders during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report.
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DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

3)

Interests and short positions of Directors and chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as (i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the
Directors and chief executives of the Company were taken or deemed to have
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO), (i) recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
directors of a listed issuer as referred to in Rules 546 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, were as follows:

(i) Long positions in shares and underlying shares
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Note

Ms. Wong Pui Yain was interested in a total of 518,866,000 shares, of which her
interest in (i) 79,766,000 shares was held in her capacity as beneficial owner; (ii)
409,670,000 shares was held through her controlling corporation, Giant Mind
International Limited, in which she is the sole legal and beneficial owner, and in which
she is deemed to be interested under Part XV of the SFO; (iii) 850,000 shares relate
to shares which may be issued pursuant to options granted to her on || January
2021 under the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 23 January 2018
(the “Share Option Scheme”); and (iv) 28,580,000 shares relate to shares held by her
spouse, Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan, which she is deemed to be interested in under Part
XV of the SFO.
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(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares in associated

corporations of the Company

Name of associated

EEERE

(i)  RERAEHZERGREEK
HHILFE

Percentage of
shareholding

in the associated
corporation

Number of  as at 3|1 December

Name of Director corporation Capacity shares 2021
20215128318
RiEEEE
BEx=pns B EE AR 5 RHEE NEREDL
Ms. WONG Pui Yain Giant Mind Nete) Beneficial owner 1,000 (MNote) 100%
BfELt Giant Mind ") BERBEAA i
Note FisE

Giant Mind held 35.28% of issued shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and/or short positions which the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company were taken or deemed to have pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO); (i) recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of a

listed issuer as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Interests and short positions of the substantial shareholders and other persons b)

in shares and underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2021, so far as it is known to the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had or were
deemed to have interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, or which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

(i) Long position in the shares

TERRRHEMALREADTRG KA
BRONERRAR

R2021F 128318 - BESRM - T3
AL GEEZEFARARBTHARR
AR ER IR SRR P BRI
EH MGG F 336 15BN AR T
AFENECMPOREEIRE IR
BESFRIAEERAEXVEBELR3DE
BETRBEOERIAE

()  REGHEFE

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding

Number of as at
shares held/ 31 December
Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested 2021
R2021 5
12A318
Fifs/ BERES HBAEFR
mE/ A8 51 EENE BHEE BAL
Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan (Mete ) Beneficial interest 28,580,000 (L) 2.46%
BB 0 Bafkn
Interest of spouse 490,286,000 (L) 42.22%
ALiBMEs
Giant Mind (Mote 2(452) Beneficial interest 409,670,000 (L) 35.28%
Bl
Mr. Chan Wai Yan, Ronald "3 Interest in controlled corporation 70,700,000 (L) 6.09%
REC KL REH)EEER
Chartwell Capital (Cayman) Limited Mete (1#3) Interest in controlled corporation 70,700,000 (L) 6.09%
REH)EE R
Chartwell Asia Engagement Master Fund ¢ 9(%3) Beneficial owner 70,700,000 (L) 6.09%
EaBAA
Mr. Ko Kin Hang Beneficial owner 64,990,000 (L) 5.60%
=RITRE ESBAA
Chartwell Value Master Fund Mot 94 Beneficial Interest 53,610,000 (L) 4.62%
BEafgn
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Ms. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan was interested in a total of 518,866,000 shares, of
which his interest in (i) 28,580,000 shares was held in his capacity as beneficial
owner; and (i) 490,286,000 relate to shares held by his spouse, Ms. Wong Pui
Yain, which he is deemed to be interested in under Part XV of the SFO.

Giant Mind International Limited is a controlled corporation owned as to
100% by Ms. Wong Pui Yain, the controlling shareholder of the Company and
a Director.

Based on disclosure of interests forms filed with the Stock Exchange as
required by the SFO, Chartwell Asia Engagement Master Fund was controlled
as to 100% by Chartwell Capital (Cayman) Limited, which in turn was
controlled as to 100% by Mr. Chan Wai Yan, Ronald. Each of Mr. Chan Wai
Yan, Ronald and Chartwell Capital (Cayman) Limited were deemed to be
interested in the share held by Chartwell Asia Engagement Master Fund by
virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Based on disclosure of interests forms filed with the Stock Exchange as
required by the SFO, Chartwell Value Master Fund has disclosed an interest in
53,610,000 shares pursuant to a filing dated 28 September 2020 concerning
a relevant event on 24 September 2020. As a result of placings of new
shares by the Company completed on 18 June 2021, the percentage holding
represented by 53,610,000 Shares would be reduced to approximately 4.62%
(ie. less than a “notifiable interest” under Part XV of the SFO). However, as
far as the Company is aware, no disclosure of interests form has been filed by
Chartwell Value Master Fund with the Stock Exchange in connection with any
cessation of holding of notifiable interest under Part XV of the SFO.

=

EEERE

RGBS 518,866,000
MR A R - EAR ()
228,580,000 B B 15 B Y
BEHAEEAEREE AN
FHEA  F(i)7490,286,000
MR B R a8 I LR
EBEMELLEENRG
MiBEEH R EE GO EXY
i HERARZERND P E
B -

Giant Mind International Limited
R—EBEARARERERR &
BEEMELLHER 100%H) %
AR o

BRiEESRBREGRINEE
RRTHMAMOESRE
% Chartwell Asia Engagement
Master Fund 3 Chartwell Capital
(Cayman) Limited %l 100% -

1M Chartwell Capital (Cayman)
Limited B BR B (C 55 A £
100% ° 1RIEE S M AEEDIE
XVER » BB S 4 K Chartwell
Capital (Cayman) Limited &
B # R AR Chartwell Asia
Engagement Master Fund¥5 78 £
Bin A o

REEH RS GO TR
RTPBRAMEZERE
Chartwell Value Master Fund 2,18
EREA2020F9 A28BHX
R 202049 24 BB AR
R EFHFER53,610,000/%
B fp R B R o AR RR
2021 F6 B I8HERE S HK
17+ 53,610,000 8% B 15 K 3K A9
RIS A LR D> E44.62%
(BMEREH LEE KB E XV
HETH[ELRERS]) - A
M BEARAFETA + Chartwell
Value Master Fund 7 5t~ B
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RZER RS M BRATRER
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors have not been
notified by any person who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO, or which fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the Share Option
Scheme conditionally adopted by the resolutions in writing of all the Shareholders passed
on 23 January 2018. The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the

provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the best quality
personnel for the development of the Company's businesses; to provide additional
incentives to the Qualifying Grantees (as defined below) and to promote the long
term financial success of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to

shareholders. The Board may offer to grant an option to any Qualifying Grantees.

"Qualifying Grantee” means (i) (1) any employee (whether full-time or part-time
employee) of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates and any person who is an
officer of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates (“Employee”); (2) any person
who is seconded to work for any member of the Group or any of its affiliates (“Secondee”);
(3) any consultant, agent, representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group or
any of its affiliates; or (4) any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier of
goods or services to the Group or any of its affiliates or any employee thereof (collectively
the "Eligible Person”); or (ii) any trust for the benefit of an Eligible Person or his or her
immediate family members or any company controlled by an Eligible Person or his or her

immediate family members.
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The limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under any schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit
being exercised. The maximum number of shares that may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue following the

completion of the capitalisation issue and the share offer, i.e. 86,000,000 shares.

No option may be granted to any participant of the Share Option Scheme such that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to that person in any |2-month period up to the date of the latest grant

exceeds 1% of the Company's issued share capital from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period as determined by the Board and not exceeding |0 years from
the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay
the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant 28 days from the date of the offer
(or such period as the Board may specify in writing). The exercise price of the options is
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is

the highest of:

(@)  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets

on the offer date;

(b)  the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation

sheets for the five Business Days immediately preceding the offer date; or

() the nominal value of a share.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from 8

February 2018, after which no further options will be granted or offered.
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On Il January 2021, 3,750,000 share options were granted to the executive Directors,
independent non-executive Directors, employees and consultants of the Group,
respectively, in order to reward the Directors, employees and consultants for the
development of the Group. These share options have an exercise price of HK$0.13 per
share and an exercise period ranging from || January 2021 to 10 January 2024. The price
of the Company's shares at the date of grant was HK$0.122 per share.

Movement of Share Options during the year under Review
Particulars of share options under the Share Option Scheme (the “Share Option(s)")

outstanding at the financial year ended 31 December, 2021 and the Share Options

granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the financial year ended 2021 are as follows:

R2021FIAIA  DRIRAAEERITES -
BIUFNTES - BB KRB H3,750,000
hiEkE URBES  EERERRLE
BRRAMENER - ZEBERENTEER
BRO.I3BIT  TEHR2020IFIAIIBE
20241 A0 « AREIRHAR LB 2B
B AFR0.1228TT °

EEFEARRERE

HZE2021F 12831 B BFEBRET 2
TRBRE ([BRE]ERINEZE2021F
HHBEERERY « BEf7F - E#EZEE
K2 BB 2 FFIBIN T

Exercse  Cancelled Lapsed Balance at
Exercise price ~ Grant during during during during 31 December
Categary of Participant Date of Grant Exercise period per shares the year the year the year the year 2021 Note
HKS
e
12A318
SREEH RARH e SROGE  FARE  FAOE FREE FRAN i
&
Directors
£
Wong Pui Yain 1110172021 1110172021 to 101012024 013 850000 Nil N Ni 850000
&l NI A1 BENME BI0B £ B &
Wan Suet Yee Cherry 110172021 10172021 1o 10/01/2024 013 850000 Nl Nl N 850000
et WIEI A1 BENM4EI AI0R £ # &
Leung Yuk Lun Unc 10172021 10172021 1o 10/01/2024 013 350000 Ni Nl N 350000
23R MIEIANRENAEIAI0R £ B ﬂ
Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam ~ 11/01/2021 10172021 1o 10/01/2024 013 350000 Nil Nil Ni 350000
WUEIRIBENAEIRI0R g & #
Wee Keng Hiong Tony [1/0172021 1110172021 to 1010172024 013 350,000 Ni Ni Nil 350,000
MIEIANRENMFIAI08 E & i
Other Employee and
Consultant of the Group ~ 11/01/202 /0172021 to 10/01/2024 0.3 1,000,000 Ni Nil Ni 1,000,000
AEEAMERRER WUEIRIEENMEIRI0B & ?3% &
Total 3,750,000 3,750,000 1
Adt

AN
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Notes

I The option period of the options shall be three years from the date of acceptance and the
Share Options shall be lapsed at the expiry of the option period.

2. No Share Option had been exercised, cancelled and lapsed as at 31 December, 2021.

Subsequent to the end of the Reporting Period, on 19 January 2022, 7,600,000 Share
Options were granted to the executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors,
employees and consultants of the Group, respectively, in order to reward the Directors,
employees and consultants for the development of the Group. These Share Options have
an exercise price of HK$0.| per share and an exercise period ranging from |9 January
2022 to 18 January 2032. The price of the Company's shares at the date of grant was
HK$0.089 per share.

The details of Share Options granted on |9 January, 2022 are as follows:

Share Options granted on 19 January, 2022

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

L BRUEZREREER ik R BeEt =F
A 7 T A A AR AR R 2K o

2. 202112731 8 - BEEERERETE X
S8 R KA o

RBERIERE - R2002F 1 A198  HRIFER
SENTER  BUFNTESF  EEKE
% 17,600,000 Bk 1 - ARBIESE - B
BEREEALEBRREMENER - 258
BEMTTERE BSRR0.BT  1TEEIA2022
FIAI9BZE20RF I A18H - ARFRAH RN
Eii B2 B AER0089ETT ©

F2022F | A 19 B R A BEREREIB IO T

R20202F 1 B 19 BB H B RE

No. of Exercise price
Balance as at Share Options per shares
Categary of Participant | January, 2022 Date of Grant Granted HK$ Total Note
20225 Ritim BRTEE
SEER | B | BVERER KRS BRERE BT st HeE
Directors and their associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
ESREABEAL (RERGEMEMARR)
Wong Pui Yain 850,000 19/01/2022 1,000,000 0.10 1,850,000
S
Wan Suet Yee Cherry 850,000 19/01/2022 1,000,000 0.10 1,850,000
B
Leung Yuk Lun Ulric 350,000 19/01/2022 400,000 0.10 750,000
Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam 350,000 19/01/2022 400,000 0.10 750,000 \
Wee Keng Hiong Tony 350,000 19/01/2022 400,000 0.10 750,000 \
Lo Yeung Kit, Alan 0 19/01/2022 550,000 0.10 550,000 182
B
Other Employee and Consultant of the Group 1,000,000 19/01/2022 3,850,000 0.10 4,850,000
FREAMESRES
Total 3,750,000 7,600,000 1,350,000 3
af
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Notes

The Share Options shall be exercisable for a period of ten years commencing from the last
date of acceptance for the grant of Share Options (i.e. 19 January, 2022) and ending on |8
January, 2032

2 Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan is the consultant and spouse of Wong Pui Yain.

3. No Share Option had been exercised, cancelled and lapsed as at 3| December, 2021.

At the date of this annual report, the Company had 11,350,000 Share Options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately 0.98% of

the Company's issued shares as at the date of the this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the sub-section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed

during the year ended 31 December 2021.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the appointment of Innovax
Capital Limited (which had been appointed as the compliance adviser of the Company
(the “Compliance Adviser”) since the listing of the Company) was terminated on 3|
March 2021 after the publication of the Company's annual report for the year ended
31 December 2020. As confirmed by the Compliance Adviser, none of the Compliance
Adviser or its directors, employees or close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) has or may have any interest in the share capital of the Company or any member
of the Group (including options or rights to subscribe for such securities) up to the date of
the termination of the its role as compliance adviser on 31 March 2021, which is required

to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Directors are aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operations
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material breach

of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As a restaurant operator, the Group has a large and diverse customer base. There
is no customer that significantly dominates the Group's revenue. For the year ended
31 December 2021, purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 24.2% (2020: 22.1%) of the Group's total purchases of raw materials
and consumables. During the same year, purchases from the Group's largest supplier
accounted for approximately 6.8% (2020: 6.0%) of the Group's total purchases of raw

materials and consumables.

Save for the purchases from related companies as set out in note 31 to the audited
consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors, their respective associates, or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any significant beneficial interest in the major

customers and suppliers disclosed above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. None
of such related party transactions constitutes a connected transaction which is subject to
the reporting, annual review, announcement and/or shareholders” approval requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level of corporate
governance standards and will review and improve the corporate governance practices

and standards constantly.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 30 to 57 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained a

sufficient public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive or similar rights under the laws of Caymans Islands
or the Articles which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis

to the existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the Companies Ordinance, every Director is entitled under the Company's
Avrticles to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses that may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as he

or she shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has maintained a directors” and officers’ liability insurance during the year
ended 31 December 2021. To the extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance, a
directors’ liability insurance is currently in place to protect the Directors against potential

costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a workforce of 388 employees (2020: 337).
Total staff costs for the year ended 3| December 2021 were approximately HK$87.1
million, as compared to the staff cost of HK$81.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms and in accordance with the
performance, qualification(s) and experience of each individual employee. Discretionary
bonuses, based on each individual's performance, are paid to employees as recognition
and in reward for their contributions. Other fringe benefits such as medical insurance,

retirement benefits and other allowances are offered to all the Group's employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated by the Remuneration
Committee (as defined below) with reference to the duties, responsibilities, experience
and competence of individual employees. The same policy also applies to the Directors.
In addition to salaries and discretionary bonuses relating to the performance of the
Group, employee benefits included pension scheme contributions. The emoluments of
the Directors are reviewed annually by the remuneration committee of the Company

(“"Remuneration Committee”).
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As incentives and rewards for their contributions to the Group, the employees of the
Group and all the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) may also
be granted share options by the Company from time to time pursuant to the share option
scheme of the Company adopted on 8 February 2018.

The Group provides various training to its employees to enhance their technical skills
and knowledge relevant to the employees’ responsibilities. The Group also provides its
employees with quality control standards and work safety standards training to enhance
their safety awareness.

The employees in Hong Kong are enrolled in the Mandatory Provident Fund under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Monthly contributions are
made by the Group which are 5% of the monthly income of the employees as stipulated
under the relevant requirements (if applicable), with the maximum contributions of
HK$ 1,500 monthly.

During the year under review, the Group did not experience any strikes, work stoppages
or significant labour disputes which affected its operations in the past and it did not
experience any significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified staff. The Directors
consider that the Group has maintained good working relationship with its employees.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report, the
Company repurchased a total of 6,410,000 Ordinary Shares (the “Shares Repurchased")
of the Company on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration (including
transaction cost) of HK$697,874.

The number of shares in issue was reduced by 5,000,000 shares as a result of the
cancellation accordingly. Upon cancellation of the Shares Repurchased, the remaining of
1,210,000 of the Shares Repurchased in November and December was subsequently
cancelled on 10 January 2022.

In January 2022, the Group has granted a total of 7,600,000 share options (the 2022
Option") to certain Directors and employees of the Group to subscribe for ordinary
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each of the Company at pre-exercise price of HK$0.| per
share. The validity period of the 2022 Option is ten years from the date of acceptance
and the 2022 Option will be lapse at the expiry of the option period. Details of which are
set out in the Company's announcement dated |9 January 2022.

In light of the outbreak of the fifth wave of the novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
in Hong Kong, the operating environment of the catering sector in Hong Kong has been
full of challenges due to the tightening of regulatory restrictions on social gatherings
and no dine-in after 6:00 p.m. previously imposed by the Hong Kong Government. The
Group's business performance in the first quarter of 2022 was inevitably affected by a
decline in customer traffic and would potentially lead to a significant reduction in the
Group's revenue in the first half of the year. There has been relaxation of certain of these
measures in April 2022.

Details of the significant events of the Group after the Reporting Period are set out in
note 4| to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships with its key
stakeholders, including its employees, customers and suppliers, to meet its immediate
and long-term business goals. During the year ended 3| December 2021, there were no
material and significant disputes between the Group and its employees, customers and
suppliers.

The Group recognises employees as one of its valuable assets and strictly complies
with labour laws and regulations and regularly reviews its existing staff benefits for their
enhancement. Apart from reasonable remuneration packages, the Group also offers other
employee benefits, such as medical insurance. The Group provides good quality services
to its customers and keeps a database for direct communications with recurring customers
so as to develop a long-term trusted relationships. The Group also maintains effective
communication and develops long-term business relationships with its suppliers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Company as well as a discussion and analysis of the
Group's performance during the year ended 31 December 2021 and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position can be found in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section set out on pages 10 to 23 of this report. These discussions form part
of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The environmental, social and governance report, which forms part of this report, is set
out on pages 58 to 77 of this report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on |7 June 2022, the notice of which
shall be sent to the shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Articles, the
GEM Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain entitlements to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 10 June 2022 to 17 June 2022,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.

Shareholders are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on 9 June 2022.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUDITOR

On 29 November 2019, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned and BDO Limited was
appointed as the auditor of the Group. There have been no other changes of auditors in
the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year have been audited by
BDO Limited who shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint
BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Jia Group Holdings Limited

Wong Pui Yain
Chairperson

28 April 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jia Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 109 to 220, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs™)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements”
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZRARE

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements which indicates
that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$21,262,000 during the financial year ended 3|
December 2021. As of that date, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by HK$38,363,000. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 3(b)
to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is

not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the “Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we have determined the matters

described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Revenue from catering services of the Group’s restaurant operations
(Refer to notes 4 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements)

We identified revenue from catering services of the Group's restaurant operations
as a key audit matter, due to the significance of revenue from catering services of the
Group's restaurant operations to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from catering

services of the Group's restaurant operations amounted to HK$221,344,000.

We focused on revenue reconciliation of daily sales reports to cash receipts and credit
card settlements as the vast majority of revenue was settled in cash or by credit card. In
addition, the recording of revenue involves a high volume of small amount transactions
through various systems. Any errors arising from capturing of data or interfaces of data
amongst the various systems may have significant impact on revenue. Therefore, it

required significant time and resources for the audit.

102 |JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED R &EBARA T

ERIBEREZEXTHEEN
BEERBIE BAVBBREMTI(b)E
B EEEREE20201F 12831 BILHE
FEELBIEFE2,262,00087T - HEZ
AR ESEENRDEEBLERHEE
38,363,000 7T « ZEFBEN © UREFE IR
KO RIIENEMEE RATEEX
THEUEMmAIEE BEXRENHELEE)
BRERREM EFERLFTELREREERE
E,o

IEREREE
IEEREZERRBEEZNIXAE - A5
HAHRGERMBHRANERERNERNF
T e %%E%%%%T%?éﬁﬁ%#&i‘%&tﬂﬂu
REETRELEER eHNEER
BRHERNER - Eﬂ*ﬁfﬂiﬁii KEZBR
TEENE | -SSR BEEFEETE M
ZERBREBEEZRENEEZEIRERE
1§ o

EEREESENERBRBRA

(B2 M M BREMTE4 o)

ey

I

I
i

% EEBLCENERRBBAZ
7% EEREE  aR EREEER

EHNERBRBRAGGEERRAEMET
Yz iﬁ’qé o HZ2021F 1283181
T BESEEBLENERRBUAR
22 ,344,000;%7c o

EH} g

J

CLU

W I'H

HRAHIMANE S ERAREE
EINARHERETRRE KRR RER -F
BRURAHER o IOh  BHRBEAFSRBRE
HAGETHRENERD - AR ERRZ
FE ) BB M B s B b i D S K B (T S8 2R D
AR RAEEEATZE - At - EEE
BRRELER

iy
#F 48



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contq)

Revenue from catering services of the Group’s restaurant operations (Cont d)

Our response:

. Obtaining an understanding of the Group's revenue recognition process and
validating the management's key internal controls over the revenue recognition
process;

. Performing analytical procedures on revenue through comparing the actual result of

the current year with that of the prior year and assessing the reasonableness of its

trend in relation to the Group's restaurant operation;

. Verifying the daily sales reports, cash receipts and credit card settlement on a

sample basis; and

. Verifying the accuracy and completeness of the daily sales reports generated from

the back end systems on a sample basis.

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in

respect of the Group’s restaurants

(Refer to notes 4, 5, 16, 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements)

The Group had significant assets in its consolidated statement of financial position,

including property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as at 3|1 December 2021.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contq)

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in
respect of the Group’s restaurants (Cont d)

Management is required to perform an impairment assessment where indicators of
impairment are identified, on these assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
these assets were allocated to cash generating units (“CGUs"), and management has
assessed the recoverable amount of these assets based on higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal. In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
management judgement was used to appropriately identify CGUs and to determine the
key assumptions and estimations. Based on the above assessment performed, for the year
ended 31 December 2021, management concluded that impairment loss of approximately
HK$4,961,000 in respect of the Group's property, plant and equipment and HK$2,984,000

in respect of its right-of-use assets were made.

Our response:

. Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology in respect of the

assessment of the recoverable amount;

. Assessing the appropriateness of the management's identification of CGUs based

on our understanding of the Group's business;
. Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions and estimations used; and

. Assessing the appropriateness of key input data used in the assessment of the

recoverable amount.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT (Conta)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such intemal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process. The

Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures in
response to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conta)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them

as to all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZRARE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contaq)

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ngai Hang

Practising Certificate no. P04743

Hong Kong, 28 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GoRERkEMEEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BE20201FE12A3IBLEEE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B Fib7 Fi5T
Revenue A 6 221,344 173,303
Other income He A 8 4622 21282
Other gains and losses HA s & 18 9 250 (1,092)
Raw materials and consumables used P FRIR IR (61,950) (46,458)
Staff costs BIMA (87,104) (81,127
Depreciation nE (33,212) (29,658)
Property rentals and related expenses MEMRE RABRER (8,785) (10,940)
Utility expenses HERX (5,651) (6,354)
Advertising and promotion expenses BERERRAY (9,238) (8,045)
Other operating expenses Hias & 10 (28,511) (24,266)
Finance costs AR I (3,151) (2,283)
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment 13 ~ BB KR ERREEE 18 (4,961) (2,326)
Impairment loss of trade and other receivable B 5 Kk E A0 U IBR) B EEE 21 - (1,565)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets ERREENREER 18 (2,948) (208)
Loss before taxation BRELRIEIE 12 (19,295) (19,737
Income tax (expense)/credit Fiis® (Fx),4E% 13 (1,967) 637
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FNETIE I 2 T A 37 4850 (21,262) (19,100
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year  JA ™ A TG FAEE R
attributable to: THRXERE
— Owners of the Company . YNGIE 2SN (19,476) (20,407)
— Non-controlling interests —JFE RS (1,786) 1,307
(21,262) (19,100)
Loss per share FhREE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREE (B) 15 (1.77) (225)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 202|
20215128318

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BiE FERT FAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER 16 30,713 30,592
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 42,442 43,868
Investment in an associate REE A RHIRE 19 - -
Financial assets FVTPL BAFEFABROEHEE 20 3,167 -
Deferred tax assets ERERIEEE 30 1,858 3,841
Deposits e 2| 13,934 16,685
Pledged bank deposits BEMIRITER 2 5,000 5,000
97,114 99,986
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =E 23 5,726 4956
Trade and other receivables, deposits and B 5 REMBKTIE - B
prepayments RIERFIE 21 13,524 10,429
Amount due from related companies JELS B A B FRIR 24 768 381
Amount due from a controlling shareholder JES 1% A A 3R 5008 24 608 288
Amount due from an associate JEMs B B 5R1E 24 747 862
Tax recoverable EEE [14 1211
Pledged bank deposits BIRIFRITER 2 4,500 4,500
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LR S 22 12,925 15,443
38,912 38,070
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables and accrued charges 85 KA TIE R ET B 25 31,879 42,094
Contract liabilities ARG 26 6,127 2,899
Amounts due to related companies FEfTRARE A B 501E 24 2,165 853
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders JE T FEFE AR AR R 501 24 - —*
Bank borrowings RITIER 27 11,184 15,191
Tax payable FER IR 370 132
Lease liabilities MERE 17 25,550 22905
77,275 84,074
Net current liabilities REBEEFHE (38,363) (46,004)
Total assets less current liabilities EELERRDAR 58,751 53982
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

®2021FE 128318

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
BiE TET FET
Non-current liabilities kRBaE
Provision BfE 28 4,450 3510
Deferred tax liabilities BLEREAR 30 51 349
Contract liabilities BHEE 26 10,267 -
Lease liability HERE |7 24231 26,585
38,999 30,444
Net assets EERE 19,752 23538
Capital and reserves EER R
Share capital R 29 11,612 10,319
Reserves i 10,341 14719
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARAEE AEIEER 21,953 25,038
Non-controlling interests IR (2,201) (1,500)
Total equity ERAHE 19,752 23,538

* represented balance less than HK$1,000

The consolidated financial statements on pages 109 to 220 were approved and authorised

for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 April 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

WONG PUI YAIN
EWE
DIRECTOR

EE

* AREERTE 100078 7T

EEEDR0025E4 A28 BHLE RIFHETEE,
REIVENOBZFAMKERE » W H T

ATRBRE

WAN SUET YEE CHERRY
BRER
DIRECTOR
EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ARGE2ER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BE2021FE12A3IBLEEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KDARBARL
Capital
redemption  Treasury Share  Other Non-
Share  Share reserve  shares option  Reserve  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium (noted) (notee)  reserve (notea) losses  Total interests Total
ErRORE EERR it

Bx RfRE (Mo (W) BRERE (W) ZHER M FERER BR#E
HKS000 HKS000  HK$000 HK$000 ~ HKSO00 HK$000  HKSO0D HK$000  HK$000 HK§000
Tn TEn  TEr TER TEn TEr  TEn TER  TEn TEn

At | January 2020 RNNEIAIR 8600 73601 - - - 1032 (63352) 29175 - DBl
Loss and total comprehensive expense ERBRRAER X E%

for the year - - - - - - (20407)  (20407) 1307 (19.100)
lsue of shares (note b) BR1A (ko) 1719 12034 - - - - - 1373 - B
Transaction costs attrbuted to share placing ~ RIARERERFMA - (370) - - - - - (370) - (370)

Disposalideemed disposal of parta equity & /B BHERNHBAR
interest in subsidiaries without loss of control 2 S BREM U &% %

i - - - - - - 2067 27 Q)
At 31 December 2000 and | January 2021 B020E 123318 R
MIEIAIA 10319 85265 - - - 10326 (80872 25038 (1500) 23538
Loss and total comprehensive expense ERBRRAER X E%
for the year - - - - - - (19476)  (19476) (1786)  (21.260)
Issue of shares (note ) Bkt (ko) 1343 1678 - - - - - 18128 - 1818
Repurchase of shares (note 29) RERH (M29) 50 (4 00 (149) - - - e D
Transaction costs attributed to share phcing ~ RIAEE LR ZMA ) - - - - -8y - (58
Disposalideemed disposal of parta equity 11 /B AHERHBAR
interest in subsidiaries without loss of control -~ Z B REMUEXE
(note 33) R (HH3E33) - - - - - - (0 (&%) 085 3%
Equity settled share-based transactions RS RIARD A
(note 39) EReNR 5 (WzE39) - - - - m - - w - W
Balance at 31 December 2021 REA3IBAES 11612 10092 50 (149 09 10326 (101038) 21953 @221 1975
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Notes:

@

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Other reserve mainly represents the aggregate amount of |) the differences between
the considerations paid and the proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net
assets attributable to the relevant interests upon the deemed acquisition/acquisition of
additional interests in subsidiaries; 2) acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary by a
controlling shareholder as deemed capital contribution; 3) reserve arising from the group
reorganisation, which mainly comprises issue of shares by Big Team Ventures Limited (“Big
Team") and the Company to acquire equity interest in subsidiaries and shareholders’ loans of
respective subsidiaries with an aggregate loan balance of HK$48,330,000; 4) deemed capital
contribution from shareholders through waiver of amounts due to the then shareholders of
HK$3,589,000; and 5) HK$1,825,000 upon the waiver of inter-company loans to More Earn
by group entities that caused an increase in net assets of More Eam attributable to non-

controlling interests.

On 24 September 2020, 171,910,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each
were issued by placing at price of HK$0.08 per share.

On 18 June 2021, 134,280,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.0| each were
issued by placing at price of HK$0.135 per share.

The capital redemption reserve of the Company represents the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company repurchased and cancelled. An amount equivalent to the nominal
value of the shares cancelled was transferred from share premium to the capital redemption

reserve.

Treasury share represents the consideration paid for the shares repurchased by the Company

but not cancelled at the end of the reporting period.

REREBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2021

BZE20201F 12831 BLEEE

HibAEEZENTEENEE  HENK
BEIG RUGE,HEINE D AREIMER 12
HESROEEFERAELAOENE
B ) BERRERYE B AR NE
Mg (RIEEE) )EBEMEMEL
f# + = ZBIEBig Team Ventures Limited([ Big
Team ]) R AR R /R YR T 2 B A Ko T
BRI RE R (885488 748,330,000
BT METRD : 9B BERENERRR
FIR3,589,0008 TLMREBRRITE « KS)&
EEELRL TMore EamBEBEA R RIEE
RERIEERE R B (EMore Eam B B B
1,825,000/ 7T

202059 A24 8 » BBEEEER0.08E
TLEBREETT171,910,000 8 FAX0.0 1 B TTHY
AR LR o

P01 F6 188 - BB EZER0.1358
LB E£1T 134,280,000 % G %0.0 1 & TTHY
RARFTERERE -

AREINBAEE FHRER T HENAR

AIBRARE(E - —ERFNTERDEERN
FAEChBRMEEEREEABEFE -

BERNERAREBEERREAREA
AR X HOARAE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= B3
n‘I'FAiE 317 Iﬁi

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BE2021FE12A3IBLEEE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 87t Fi5T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETE
Loss before taxation BREEAIEIE (19,295) (19,737)
Adjustments for: FLATSBELFAE
Interests income FEWA 8 (19) (143)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERREBITE 12 12,209 [1,842
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 12 21,003 17816
Finance costs ELEZZN I 3,151 2,283
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  [BEYE « R KR EMNEE 9 18 1,454
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment 1% ~ BB kR EHRIERE 16 4,961 2326
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets EREEENRERR 17 2,948 208
Impairment loss of trade and other receivable 85 REM BRI RE
EiE 2 - 1,565
Provision for/(reversal of) reinstatement provision {18 B &,/ (#(a)) 940 (344)
Equity settled share-based transactions VAR A 45 3 A R 7 75 BB
M5 39 229 -
Gain on termination of lease R E R 9 (87) -
Operating cash flows before movements in working ‘& B & @ HBAILERERE
capital 26,058 17,270
(Increase)/decrease in inventories F&GEm, WL (770) 901
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables, 8% REMBEUFIE « HE K
deposits and prepayments BRFIEGEM),/md (1,121) 1733
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables and Z 5 & E b B 58H &
accrued charges FEETER (L) /HEh (8,829) 2941
Increase in contract liabilities BHREEEN 13,143 1,138
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to related FEfTRARE A B FRIBE 0, (R D)
companies I5 (108)
Increase in amount due from a controlling JELL — & P AR AR BR SR IE 1 A
shareholder (320) -
Decrease in provision B> - (258)
Cash generated from operations KEEENRE 28,176 23617
Income tax refund REMEN 1,204 44
Income tax paid RENIFIEE2) (151) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ~ & ZEBHELENR L FHE
ACTIVITIES 29,229 23,661
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BZE20201F 12831 BLEEE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b3 FB7 F57
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES
Interests received EHFLE 19 143
Advance to a controlling shareholder [ — &% HXHX%*“W\ - (190)
Advance to related companies ) B HsE A ) (387) (381)
Acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL H&E%?ﬂ/&ﬁﬁaﬂ\%iﬁéﬁ@
EHEE (2,390) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - BFEREHED
equipment PiS5RE - 450
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BELRE (18,695) (15,136)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHEERRTER - (5,000)
Repayment from an associate —MHEE A RER 115 52
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ REZE AR S FE (21,338) (20,062)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Interests paid ERFE 37 (388) (601)
New bank borrowings FTRITER 37 -~ 14,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER 37 (4,007) 711
Advanced from a related company il NGIE T 37 1,297 735
Payment for lease liabilities MEBENT 37 (24,558) (21,184)
Proceeds from placing of new shares [R=Fit GOl IR /e 18,128 13,753
Repurchase of shares BRI, (691) -
Payments of transaction costs attributable to placing 2 STEC&E M7 I X S A
of shares (585) (370)
Sales proceeds of disposal of interests in subsidiaries iz & Fff B A Al a A &
kS 33 395 80
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM METE (A, ek
FINANCING ACTIVITIES i3 (10,409) 3,702
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE INCASHAND  R&RBLSZEY (RD),/
CASH EQUIVALENTS EnFE (2,518) 7301
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REDNRERREEEN
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 15,443 8,142
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END RERNAERAEEEY
OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BANK (BNRITEERR A E)
BALANCES AND CASH 12,925 15443
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B 3% SR B 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BE2021FE12A3IBLEEE
1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised) of
the Cayman Islands on 21 August 2015 and its shares have been listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 8 February
2018. Its immediate and ultimate holding company is Giant Mind International
Limited (“Giant Mind"), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
and is controlled by Ms. Wong Pui Yain (“Ms. PY Wong"). The address of the
Company's registered office and principal place of business are disclosed in the

corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company acts as investment holding company and the principal activities of its

subsidiaries are set out in note 38.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

@

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the following
new or amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to the Group's financial

statements for the annual period beginning on or after | January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16

BRIBHRELENEIN - BEGHERE395 - MIREAEYE —
BRUMBREEINETR  BEMBREERFEIHER
BERPBRELERE 165 (BFTR)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

BRMBHREERE 1657 (BRI A)

Except for the early adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, the Group has not applied
any new and revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
period. These new or amended HKFRSs did not have any material impact on

the Group's accounting policies.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group's
financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group's current intention is to apply

these changes on the date they become effective.

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2021

BZE20201F 12831 BLEEE

2. EREBEUBHSEAN(EEH

Bk

(@)

EMEER

3R )

R RETERUBRE
28

RAFE  AEBEHAEER
2021 I A1 Bk BRABMEE
R BHRERERERATH
BAGA AR BMAFTTHE
BRI BB ERE R :

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
202156 A30A A RE0 9B RS HIEREE RS

BRIBFRME B BRELRE
L6557 (ERTA) ~ 2021 F6 A30H
#2098 A S RAEHES
BRI AEEEKRERTMR
2N HA R 1A R A SRR T 5T e
BRI BB BREER - ZEH
TSEERT BB B RS 2R
AEENGHEET BEFMER
7 X

B M R E T BIE
AERMEREER

DA RS B B A5 4R R B AR B
ZHE B ERIBREE
RIB & B - BRARER - AR
BASERSRM - NEEBH
AR SRR AR E A%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERNE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021E 12831 BLEEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2.

STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Contd)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective (b)

(Contd)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

ERERMBHREEA ((FEY
BRG] (@)

B AR IE i R E BT
AEBMBREER (F)

Amendments to HKFRS | First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument, HKFRS 16 Leases
and HKAS 41 Agriculture!

BRMBHRELN2018F 22000 FBHNFEIE BAVBRELENSE SREXRRBTEMHHERR - BAMBRS

Amendment HKAS 16
BAGTHENE 165 (BFTR)
Amendments to HKAS 37
BAGTENE7H (BFTR)
Amendments to HKAS | and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
BRETTERE | KRB BN RS ER
BB (1BF]A)
Amendments to HKAS 8
BEAGTHENFESTH (BFTX)
Amendments to HKAS |
BEAGTHENE 15 (BFTR)
Amendments to HKAS 12
BAGTENE 125 (BFTR)
Amendment to HKFRS 3
BEMBREENEIHR (BRI X)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022

=
BAFIRHMBLE - BEMBRELEANE RPERBLEE
RISE41 SRR E (BRTA) |

Property, plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use!

ME ~ BB R — NERUE Al < AT S 508!

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract'

BEAH-BITEHZKAE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
eHEEL RE

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

SRt 2 ER?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?
RENBRRBAIERE?

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction?
RE-RFELNEENRESBHNETH IR

Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

PSR 2 Rt

20225 | A1 Ba 2 BRIRE

FEEREN

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023 ’ 2023 | A1 B2 KRR
FEHRAEXN

: Effective for business combinations for which the date of acquisition is on or ’ RIS B RN 2029 1 A1 B

after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after | January

2022

The directors of the Group anticipate that the application of all above
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

@

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "HKFRS") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules™).

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

The COVID-19 pandemic and the related measures imposed by the
government in Hong Kong to contain the spreading of COVID-19 pandemic
had resulted in operating hours restrictions and temporary closure of the
restaurants during the year. These have negatively impacted the results of
the Group during the reporting period and its liquidity position. There has
been relaxation of certain of those measures but the situation in which the

Group operates is still precarious.

During the year, the Group has incurred a net loss of HK$21,262,000 and
at the end of reporting period, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by HK$38,363,000. The Group has breached the covenants
of borrowings amounted to HK$1 1,184,000 included in the current liabilities
as at 3| December 2021. The lender may declare the outstanding principal
amount, accrued interest and all other sums payable under the loan

immediately due and payable (note 27).

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2021
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3. mREEE
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BABSREDRIE S AR
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A2 BB -

BHR209BRBEREBUALE
BRI ABH2019BMETHRE
BEEMETEEREEE - £
FEEEGEEREZIRARY
RAMMNER - SHARERR
SHMEEARTBERRESE
TEEYE HPETHEEER

IR - BEAKEZEMERE
TRE °

FRN - AKEEELEEBBRTE
21,262,000/87C + RAREHRA
EENRBEBERLERDEE
38,363,000/ 7T © 1202112 A
31 - ARBRERAHERET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021E 12831 BLEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

(b)  Basis of measurement and going concern assumption (Cont d)

The above events or conditions indicate that a matenial uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore, the Group may not be able to realise its assets and

discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

For the purpose of assessing going concern, the directors of the Company
have prepared a cash flow forecast covering a period of |5 months from
the end of the reporting period of these consolidated financial statement
(“Forecast”). The past performance and liquidity and the following measures
have been taken into account in the preparation of the Forecast, which
includes active cost-saving and other measures to improve the Group's

operating cash flows and financial position:

a)  Up to the approval date of these financial statements, the Group is
still in the negotiation process with the bank to resolve breach of
the financial covenants in order to maintain the existing banking loan

facilities utilised (note 27);

b)  The Group has obtained certain rental concessions from landlords of

the Group's restaurants;
c)  The Group is taking measures to tighten cost controls over staff costs

aiming at improving the working capital and cash flow position of the

Group; and

d)  Closely monitoring the development of COVID-19 to consider

reopening of the temporarily closed restaurants.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption (Cont d)

In consideration of the Group's current operation and business plan, the
directors are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial

obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable future.

In addition to the above, Ms. PY Wong, being the controlling shareholder
and a director of the Company, has undertaken to provide financial support
to the Group to enable the Group to have sufficient working capital to meet
its liabilities and obligations as and when they fall due and to continue to
carry on its business over the period covered by the Forecast. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to reduce the carrying values of the Group's assets
to their net realisable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments has

not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company, and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise

indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021E 12831 BLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with

the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's

accounting policies.

All'intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant

subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a
loss of control of the subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amount of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of

the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the relevant assets

or liabilities were disposed of.

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2021

BZE20201F 12831 BLEEE

EREFBRA)

ReEE(E)

mnE - WEARNMBHREE
R USHSHREEA
EEMEHBER -2 -

HAREKB AR ZHAXSEH
WIESEBEARRIMEE - &
& s WA XHERER
ENHEGARERZHYH -

B AR M I R i i AR
WEZNRZY BREHEZ
ez B TR A ABNRBRE
REPIDERBHE AR EEF
(g o

FEBRAEHE L A 225

AEERMBLARERZEY
EEPREHZMB AR 22
1 BERERRIAR - K&
Bz s M IF R s 2 PR E{E
BT R ARBRERZEHE
NRIZBRAERES - JHERE
mZ ERBEREMNRAARA
BerFEZERZER  HEEK
PESERLBEAABEAA

i AN 5 (B 2% 25 S T I 1 ] 0 4
- BlHEKRESERR)EK
REQAFEREAREERZNA
FEAMEMHBEARNEE
(BERE) R EAREMIEE
iR ERREEHOER
FHE o ZRIBZMB AR EA
FTEBRANBRRNEERNEE
HEEESBERERTAERE
RIEETFAAR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 %% | 123



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021FE12A3IBLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of an associate used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or

constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from

the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(b)

Investment in an associate (Cont d)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest
in an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent

that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in

the associate that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021E 12831 BLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(c)  Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, .e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that

are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an altemative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment

for performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BZE20201F 12831 BLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 4, FTEEIHER#E)
() Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont d) () RBEFEHNZWA(E)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer

obtains control of the distinct good or service.

The Group's revenue from catering, restaurant consultancy and other

services are recognised over time as such services are rendered.

Revenue from membership services and sponsorship from promotion
services are recognised on a time-based method over the subscription

period/sponsorship period respectively.

License fee income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with
the substance of the relevant agreement. License fee income is determined
by reference to the gross revenue generated by the licensee under the

agreement.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or

an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

TR WARRPESHAREE R
FIRAS T B RERT RERR

AEEBEHR  EEEEREM
PRI EEMBRA R A BRS
B B s ] 2

BeEREREERBENESE
WA IR B R £ 9 Bl R BT B AR
/& Bh BRI -

AABERARBEEGENEE
RIEETAERER © A BRATS
SERA T RERZEELNR
ANEHEET -

ANEEREARERE MRS
BYETEPMAKERLEER
WERHE (U REERE)NE
fE o

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 £# | 127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021E 12831 BLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(d)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements HEMFEEE
Furniture and fixtures GREEERE
Equipment and tools REhITE
Computers B

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated individually, when
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future

cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021FE12A3IBLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

@)

Impairment on tangible assets (Cont'd)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss

immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method/first-in first out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(®

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 5. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets

or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees or points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021E 12831 BLEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss, except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3

"Business Combinations” applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(®

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income s
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period following the

determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables,
deposits, amounts due from a controlling shareholder, amounts due from an
associate, pledged bank deposits and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021FE12A3IBLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current

conditions at the reporting date, as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on

these assets are assessed individually for all debtors.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
[2m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(g)  Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

0

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking

information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when

assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant

decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2021

4, FEFT

BZE20201F 12831 BLEEE

sHER (2)

(@ SBMIAE)

THEE (E)
THEENRE (&)
() EERRAEEN

N
Q

f

-

BRI R
BT AR NG
e T ARRE
HE 2 A )3 W R i B2 37
TRIANERERABH
BEMBORBRETY
B o EITULETMAE - AE
EeEEABEREED
TERTHER  BEA
ARBREZHETIUE
B PR A SKS N T R
ATIEMEE R o

g
%IFFFE_IE%
-

=
i

38>

\

St

IR A ER AR
A B MBS & %
Tﬁﬂ:

c SBI ARSI (W
BN EEFR
MERgEREES
1t

- EAHBEBEBAE
EEBEHAREAR
RIE MRS - M
BIEERRORE
FIRRENREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 %% | 135



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021E 12831 BLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(g)  Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Cont d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Cont d)

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating

results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount

becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(g)  Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

(i

(i)

Definition of default

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to

demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021E 12831 BLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets (Cont d)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(iv)  Whrite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account

legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition

event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(g)  Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the

respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the

effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the

financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021E 12831 BLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(g)  Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Cont d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont'd)
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the

exception of trade receivables where the corresponding adjustment is

recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to

the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the financial asset's carrying amount and the sum of
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity (Contd)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised as the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity

instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group's financial liabilities, including trade and other payables and
accrued charges, amounts due to related companies and bank borrowings,
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021FE12A3IBLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans (including
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme™)) are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the

cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already

paid.

Leasing

All leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but there are
accounting policy choices for an entity, which may choose not to capitalise (i)
leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying
asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than |2 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been expensed on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)
()  Leasing (Contd)

()

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the

lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Except for right-of-use assets that meets the definition of an
investment property or a class of property, plant and equipment to
which the Group applies the revaluation model, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021E 12831 BLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

@)

Leasing (Cont d)

(i)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the lessee’s incremental

borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date
of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the

lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)
()  Leasing (Contd)

(i)

Lease liability (Cont d)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or to reflect revised in-

substance fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because,
for example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee extension or
termination option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of
the lease liability to reflect the payments to be made over the revised
term, which are discounted using a revised discount rate. The carrying
value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element
of future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
except that the discount rate remains unchanged. In both cases, an
equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-
use asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over the
remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is recognised in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021FE12A3IBLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

0]

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘loss before taxation” because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
Reporting Period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset

to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

0]

()

Taxation (Cont d)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs, other than those directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance

that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that

the grants will be received.

FOR THE

4, TE
()

e M BRHE

YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2021
BZE20201F 12831 BLEEE

ERTBR#)
BR (&)

EEHRRBEREENTERR
REARERMNRE HRAWK
MgEEEEER BB ZRAE
TIAMSHRBEER

BB R AITHEM A A A E B
BEESRAHARELRE B
BRE-HERBBKZAERE
BHARERZFEAREER
MR REER B ER - AIET
BAREERAER LR -

ENEA PR FE R IR R ek o R
EEREREMEERENER
ISR 2 T8 B AR RN ©

EENEEN
FRBREFRAREE RN AR
MR ERWE  HEdEES
BIGEE M B & E LR BT
BROI

BB
RIEFABRENEEKETH

5 B P 16 5 3 & W 2 # B -
BRI S HERRTHE)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 #% | 147



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021FE12A3IBLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

(m)

Government grants (Cont d)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets (including property, plant and
equipment) are recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis

over the useful lives of the related assets.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of

those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and
measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where
the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to

be received from the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(n)  Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are reconverted at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not reconverted.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the reconversion of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note
4, management of the Group is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the

next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 202|
BZE2021E 12831 BLEEE

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Contd)

@

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

()

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and
depreciation method in determining the related depreciation charges
for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the management's experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions and will take
into account the lease term (including any renewal option) of the
Group's restaurants. Management of the Group will accelerate the
depreciation charge where the economic useful lives are shorter
than previously estimated due to removal or closure of restaurants.
The management of the Group will also write-